
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF 
 THE CITY OF BURNET 

 
Notice is hereby given that a Regular Council Meeting will be held by the governing 
body of the City of Burnet on the 27th day of July, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers, Burnet Municipal Airport, 2402 S. Water, Burnet, at which time the following 
subjects will be discussed, to-wit: 
 
This notice is posted pursuant to the Texas Government Code, Chapter §551-Open 
Meetings. 
 
The following subjects will be discussed, to-wit: 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
INVOCATION:  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   
 
PLEDGE TO TEXAS FLAG: 
 
1.  SPECIAL REPORTS/RECOGNITION: None. 
 
  
2. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS:  

 
(All of the following items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be self-explanatory 
by the Council and will be enacted with one motion.  There will be no separate 
discussion of these items unless a Council Member, staff member or citizen requests 
removal of the item from the consent agenda for the purpose of discussion.  For 
removal of an item, a request must be made to the Council when the Consent Agenda 
is opened for Council Action.) 

 
2.1) Approval of the June 13, 2021 City Council Regular Meeting minutes 
 

3.  PUBLIC HEARING: None. 

4. ACTION ITEMS: 



4.1) Discuss and consider action: SECOND AND FINAL READING OF AN 
ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY CODE CHAPTER 22 (ENTITLED “BUILDING 
AND BUILDING REGULATIONS”) BY ESTABLISHING A BUILDING PERMIT FEE 
TABLE AND REVISING THE BUILDING ADDITIONS AND REMODELING FEE; 
PROVIDING FOR PENALTY; PROVIDING CUMULATIVE, REPEALER AND 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE:  H. Erkan, Jr. 
 
4.2) Discuss and consider action:  AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE 
ISSUANCE OF THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS COMBINATION TAX AND 
REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2021; LEVYING AN AD 
VALOREM TAX AND PLEDGING CERTAIN SURPLUS REVENUES IN SUPPORT 
OF THE CERTIFICATES; APPROVING AN OFFICIAL STATEMENT, A PAYING 
AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT AND OTHER AGREEMENTS RELATING TO 
THE SALE AND ISSUANCE OF THE CERTIFICATES; AND ORDAINING OTHER 
MATTERS RELATING TO THE ISSUANCE OF THE CERTIFICATES: D. Vaughn 

 
4.3) Discuss and consider action: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS, PROVIDING FOR THE SUBMISSION OF 
NOMINATIONS FOR THE ELECTION OF DIRECTORS OF THE BURNET 
CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT FOR THE YEARS 2022-2023; AND PROVIDING 
FOR OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSES: K. Dix    
 
4.4) Discuss and consider action: The 2021/2022 Public Safety Dispatch Agreement: 
B. Lee 
 
4.5) Discuss and consider action: FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS, AMENDING ORDINANCE 
2020-18; THE ORIGINAL BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2020, AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 FOR THE 
CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS, FUNDING ACCOUNTS IN BUDGET DUE TO 
UNFORESEEN SITUATIONS; CONTAINING FINDINGS; PROVIDING FOR 
SAVINGS AND SEVERABILITY: P. Langford 

4.6) Discuss and consider action: Appointment of Council Members to the 
Comprehensive Plan Committee: D. Vaughn 

5.  REQUESTS FROM COUNCIL FOR FUTURE REPORTS: In accordance with 
Resolution R2020-28 councilmembers may request the City Manager to prepare and 
present future report on matters of public interest.           

6. ADJOURN:  
                 Dated this the 23rd day of July, 2021 
 

           CITY OF BURNET 
CRISTA GOBLE BROMLEY, MAYOR 

 



I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that the above NOTICE OF MEETING of 
the governing body of the above named City, BURNET, is a true and correct copy of 
said NOTICE and that I posted a true and correct copy of said NOTICE on the bulletin 
board, in the City Hall of said City, BURNET, TEXAS, a place convenient and readily 
accessible to the general public at all times, and said NOTICE was posted on July 23, 
2021, and remained posted continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled 
time of said Meeting. 
 
 
 

                                                      _____________________________________ 
                                                      Kelly Dix, City Secretary 
 

 
NOTICE OF ASSISTANCE AT THE PUBLIC MEETINGS: 
The City Council Chamber is wheelchair accessible. Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who may need 
auxiliary aids or services, such as interpreters for persons who are deaf or hearing impaired, readers, or large print, are requested to 
contact the City Secretary’s office (512.756.6093) at least two working days prior to the meeting. Requests for information may be 
faxed to the City Secretary at 512.756.8560. 
 
RIGHT TO ENTER INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
The City Council for the City of Burnet reserves the right to adjourn into executive session at any time during the course of this 
meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above, as authorized by Texas Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultation with 
Attorney), 551.072 (Deliberations about Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel 
Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations about Security Devices) and 551.087 (Economic Development). 



STATE OF TEXAS  {}       
COUNTY OF BURNET {}    
CITY OF BURNET  {} 
 
On this the 13th day of July, 2021, the City Council of the City of Burnet convened in Regular Session, at 6:00 
p.m. at the Council Chambers, Burnet Municipal Airport, 2402 S. Water Street, Burnet, TX thereof with the 
following members present, to-wit: 
Mayor     Crista Goble Bromley  
Council Members Philip Thurman, Ricky Langley, Danny Lester, Joyce Laudenschlager, Mary Jane 

Shanes, Cindia Talamantez    
City Manager   David Vaughn 
City Secretary   Kelly Dix 
Guests: Patricia Langford, Alan Burdell, Brian Lee, Tony Nash, Mark Miller, Kelli Sames, Adrienne Field, Leslie 
Kimbler, Ken Graham, Brigid Cooley 
Call to Order: Mayor Bromley called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
INVOCATION:  Led by Council Member Shanes 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  
PLEDGE TO TEXAS FLAG: Pledges led by Council Member Langley 
SPECIAL REPORTS/RECOGNITION: 
Development Services Report: M. Imrie: Matt Imrie presented the June 2021 Development Services Report that 
included the month end permit numbers issued for all categories, review of building developments in progress, 
and the June Code Enforcement activity. 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS:  
(All of the following items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be self-explanatory by the Council and will 
be enacted with one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Council Member, staff 
member or citizen requests removal of the item from the consent agenda for the purpose of discussion. For 
removal of an item, a request must be made to the Council when the Consent Agenda is opened for Council 
Action.) 
Approval of the June 22, 2021 City Council Regular Meeting minutes: Council Member Danny Lester moved to 
pull this item from the agenda due to an interpretation error concerning the Technical Advisory Committee item.  
Council Member Mary Jane Shanes seconded.  City Secretary Kelly Dix informed all present that the error had 
been corrected and reviewed the corrected copy with all present.  Council Member Danny Lester amended his 
motion to approve the consent agenda as presented.  Council Member Mary Jane Shanes seconded. The motion 
carried unanimously. 
PUBLIC HEARING:  
Public Hearing: Public Hearing: City Council will receive testimony and comments from members of the public 
on an Ordinance amending city code chapter 22 (entitled “building and building regulations”) by establishing a 
building permit fee table and revising the building additions and remodeling fee: H. Erkan, Jr.:  Mayor Bromley 
opened the public hearing and asked if anyone was interested in speaking, if so to approach the podium. There 
being no one wishing to speak, Mayor Bromley closed the public hearing. 
ACTION ITEMS: 
Discuss and consider action: SECOND AND FINAL READING OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET TEXAS AMENDING CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES CHAPTER 
98 (ENTITLED “SUBDIVISIONS”) BY AMENDING THE NOTIFICATION AND HEARING 
PROCEDURES PRESCRIBED IN SECTION 98-22; PROVIDING FOR PENALTY; PROVIDING 
CUMULATIVE, REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY CLAUSES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE: 
H. Erkan, Jr.: Council Member Danny Lester moved to approve and adopt Ordinance No. 2021-21 as presented.  
Council Member Cindia Talamantez seconded.  The motion carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: SECOND AND FINAL READING OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
BURNET, TEXAS, ADDING TO CODE OF ORDINANCE CHAPTER 2 (ENTITLED 
“ADMINISTRATION”), A NEW ARTICLE III, (ENTITLED “ADVISORY BODIES”); AND ADDING A 
NEW SECTION 2-42 (ENTITLED “PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION”); PROVIDING FOR 



PENALTY; PROVIDING CUMULATIVE, REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY CLAUSES; PROVIDING 
FOR PUBLICATION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE:  H. Erkan, Jr.: Council Member Philip 
Thurman moved to approve and adopt Ordinance No. 2021-22 as presented.  Council Member Danny Lester 
seconded.  The motion carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: SECOND AND FINAL READING OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET TEXAS AMENDING CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES CHAPTER 
98 (ENTITLED “SUBDIVISIONS”) BY ADDING A CONSTRUCTION PLAN INSPECTION FEE TO 
SECTION 98-23; PROVIDING FOR PENALTY; PROVIDING CUMULATIVE, REPEALER AND 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE:  H. Erkan, Jr.: Council Member 
Philip Thurman moved to approve and adopt Ordinance No. 2021-22 with changes to include reducing the fee 
percentage from three (3) to one and a half percent (1.5) of the opinion of probable cost (OPC) and the addition 
of the statement presented for section nine (9).  Council Member Ricky Langley seconded.  The motion carried 
unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY CODE CHAPTER 
22 (ENTITLED “BUILDING AND BUILDING REGULATIONS”) BY ESTABLISHING A BUILDING PERMIT 
FEE TABLE AND REVISING THE BUILDING ADDITIONS AND REMODELING FEE; PROVIDING FOR 
PENALTY; PROVIDING CUMULATIVE, REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY CLAUSES; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE:  H. Erkan, Jr.: Council Member Ricky Langley moved to approve the 
first reading of Ordinance No. 2021-24 as presented.  Council Member Danny Lester seconded. The motion 
carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: Appointment of Burnet Municipal  Airport Advisory Board Members: K. Dix: 
Council Member Joyce Laudenschlager moved to re-appoint Dave Hargett (position 4) and James Wreyford 
(position 5) to the Burnet Municipal Airport Advisory Board for a term of two years that will expire in June 2023.  
Council Member Mary Jane Shanes seconded.  The motion carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: Burnet Historic Preservation Board appointment: K. Dix: Council Member Cindia 
Talamantez moved to approve appointment of Cheryl Howell to the Burnet Historic and Preservation Board as 
presented.  Council Member Joyce Laudenschlager seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING DEFEASANCE AND REDEMPTION OF 
CERTAIN OF THE CITY'S OUTSTANDING OBLIGATIONS AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS: D. 
Vaughn: Council Member Philip Thurman moved to approve Resolution No. R2021-35 as presented.  Council 
Member Ricky Langley seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET, 
TEXAS, AMENDING SECTION 8.12 MILITARY LEAVE, OF THE PERSONNEL POLICY MANUAL BY 
UPDATING AND CLARIFYING POLICY REQUIREMENTS: K. Sames: Council Member Cindia Talamantez 
moved to approve Resolution No. R2021-36 as presented.  Council Member Joyce Laudenschlager seconded. The 
motion carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: Transfer of 179D Tax Deduction for the Burnet Police Department Facility: D. 
Vaughn: Council Member Mary Jane Shanes moved to approve the transfer of the 179D Tax Deduction for the 
Burnet Police Department Facility to American Constructors as presented.  Council Member Joyce 
Laudenschlager seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF BURNET TEXAS APPROVING 
A FINANCING USE AND SALES TAX AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF BURNET; AND ENACTING 
OTHER PROCEDURES AND PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE PURPOSES OF THIS RESOLUTION: 
D. Vaughn: Council Member Danny Lester moved to approve Resolution No. R2021-37 as presented.  Council 
Member Joyce Laudenschlager seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: Approval and authorization for the City Manager to execute a renewal contract with 
Spectrum Enterprise for fiber-based ethernet service: D. Vaughn: Council Member Joyce Laudenschlager moved 
to approve the renewal of the Spectrum Enterprise contract for fiber-based ethernet services and authorize the 
City Manager to execute the documentation as presented.  Council Member Cindia Talamantez seconded.  The 
motion carried unanimously.  
Discuss and consider action:  A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET, 
TEXAS, SELECTING THE FIRM SEAUX & PIERCE TO BE THE CITY HALL PROJECT ARCHITECT 



AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE A CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES FOR FINAL CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL: D. Vaughn: Council Member Ricky Langley moved to 
approve Resolution No. R2021-38 as presented.  Council Member Joyce Laudenschlager seconded. The motion 
carried unanimously. 
REQUESTS FROM COUNCIL FOR FUTURE REPORTS: In accordance with Resolution R2020-28 
councilmembers may request the City Manager to prepare and present future report on matters of public interest: 
None.  
ADJOURN: There being no further business a motion to adjourn was made by Council Member Mary Jane Shanes 
at 6:47 p.m.  Seconded by Council Member Joyce Laudenschlager. The motion carried unanimously. 
.     
               
          
          ___________________________ 
          Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor  
 
ATTEST:  
 
     
_______________________ 
Kelly Dix, City Secretary  



 

 

 

 
Development Services 

 

ITEM 4.1 
 
 
Habib Erkan Jr. 
Assistant City Manager 
512-715-3201 
herkan@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
Meeting Date: July 27, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action: SECOND AND FINAL READING OF AN 

ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY CODE CHAPTER 22 (ENTITLED 
“BUILDING AND BUILDING REGULATIONS”) BY ESTABLISHING A 
BUILDING PERMIT FEE TABLE AND REVISING THE BUILDING 
ADDITIONS AND REMODELING FEE; PROVIDING FOR PENALTY; 
PROVIDING CUMULATIVE, REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE:  H. Erkan, Jr. 

 
Background: This ordinance addresses two issues.  The establishment of a uniform fee 

table and a state law compliance issue. 
 

The compliance issue is regarding the 86th legislative session’s approval of 
HB 852, which was codified as Texas Local Government Code Sec. 
214.907.  The section prohibits municipalities from basing building permit 
fees on the value of a residential dwelling or the cost of constructing or 
improving the dwelling.  Moreover, the section prohibits municipalities from 
inquiring about the value or costs of constructing or improving a residential 
dwelling as a condition of approving a building permit.   

 
The only city permit fee not in compliance with Sec. 214.907 is residential 
remodeling.   Currently, the cost of permit table states the permit fee for: 
“additions, remodeling, etc., is $5.00, per $1000.00 of construction costs.”  
As this fee is prohibited as to residential permits, the development services 
department is only charging the minimum ($25.00) permit fee for such 
applications. 

  
Information: This ordinance establishes a new Article XXI (entitled “Fee Schedule”).  

Article XXI lists all Chapter 22 building permit fees in one table.  This will 
allow for easier annual updates of fees each fiscal year. 

 
 Additionally, this ordinance will allow collection of more than the minimum 

begin collecting more than the minimum fee for residential remodeling 
permit applications. 

 
 There have been no changes to Ordinance 2021-24 since the first reading 

on July 13, 2021. 
 



 

Fiscal Impact: It is anticipated this ordinance will have a small positive fiscal impact, as 
residential remodeling permit fee revenue increases.  

  
Recommendation: Approve and adopt Ordinance No. 2021-24, as presented. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-24 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF BURNET, TEXAS 
AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 22 (ENTITLED 
“BUILDING AND BUILDING REGULATIONS”) FOR THE PURPOSES OF 
ESTABLISHING A BUILDING PERMIT FEE TABLE AND REVISING THE 
BUILDING ADDITIONS AND REMODELING FEE; PROVIDING FOR 
PENALTY; PROVIDING CUMULATIVE, REPEALER AND 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSES; PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

Whereas, pursuant to the city’s inherent powers as a home rule municipality, the laws 
and constitution of this state, including Texas Local Government Code Chapter 214, city 
council has adopted national building, fire, electrical, plumbing, mechanical and similar 
codes within Chapter 22 of the City Code; and 
Whereas, city council desires to amend Chapter 22 to revise the permit fee for 
construction additions and remodeling to be calculated on a square footage basis; and 
  
Whereas, city council desires to amend Chapter 22 to place all fees authorized by said 
chapter in one fee schedule. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BURNET, TEXAS:  
 
Section One.  Fee Revision.  The permit fee for building additions and remodeling is 
hereby revised to eight cents per square foot as reflected in section eight of this 
ordinance. 
Section two.  Code Amendment.  City Code Chapter 22 (entitled “buildings and building 
Regulations”) Article III (entitled “Building Code”) Section 22-55 (entitled “amendments to 
the building codes”) is hereby amended by revising subsection (c) (entitled “building 
permit fee”) to read as follows: 

(c) Building permit fee. The table of the International Building Code entitled, "Building 
Permit Fees" is hereby replaced by Article XXI (entitled “Fee Schedule”) Table One 
(entitled “Building Permit Fees”).  

Section three.  Code Amendment.  City Code Chapter 22 (entitled “buildings and 
building regulations”) Article VI (entitled “plumbing code”) Section 22-129 (entitled 
“plumbing permit fees”) is hereby amended by revising the section to read as follows: 

Sec. 22-129. Plumbing permit fees. 
All applications for permits required under this Article shall be made on such form as 
provided by the Building Official with payment of permit fees as stated in Article XXI 
(entitled “Fee Schedule”) Table Two (entitled “Plumbing Permit Fees”). 



 

Section four.  Code Amendment.  City Code Chapter 22 (entitled “buildings and 
building regulations”) Article VII (entitled “mechanical code”) Section 22-152 (entitled 
“mechanical permit fees”) is hereby amended by revising the section to read as follows: 

Sec. 22-152. Mechanical permit fee. 
Table 1-A of the Uniform Mechanical Code entitled "Mechanical Permit Fees" is hereby 
replaced by Article XXI (entitled “Fee Schedule”) Table Three (entitled “Mechanical Permit 
Fees”).  

Section five.  Code Amendment.  City Code Chapter 22 (entitled “buildings and building 
regulations”) Article VIII (entitled “Miscellaneous Codes”) Section 22-160 (entitled 
“International Fire Code”) is hereby amended by revising subsection (a)(2) to read as 
follows: 

(2) Section 105.1.2 Types of Permits.   All applications for permits required under this 
Article shall be made on such form as provided by the Building Official with 
payment of permit fees as stated in Article XXI (entitled “Fee Schedule”) Table 
Four (entitled “Fire Code Permit Fee Schedule”). 

Section six.  Code Amendment.  City Code Chapter 22 (entitled “Buildings and Building 
Regulations”) Article VIII (entitled “Miscellaneous Codes”) Section 22-160 (entitled 
“International Fire Code”) is hereby amended by revising subsection (a)(15) to read as 
follows: 

(15) 307.9 Permit fee and duration.  
307.0 Permit fee and duration is hereby amended as provide in Article XXI 
(entitled “Fee Schedule”) Table Five (entitled “Outdoor Burning and Fireworks 
Fees”). 

Section seven.  Code Amendment.  City Code Chapter 22 (entitled “Buildings and 
Building Regulations”) Article VIII (entitled “Miscellaneous Codes”) Section 22-160 
(entitled “International Fire Code”) is hereby amended by revising subsection (a)(22) by 
adding the language that is underlined (underlined) as follows: 

(22) Section 5608.2 Permit application.  
Section 5608.2 Permit application is hereby amended as follows:  

Any person, company or other entity desiring to ignite fireworks in a controlled public display, 
use pyrotechnic before a proximate audience or use flame effects before an audience must file 
an application, with the application fee stated as provide in Article XXI (entitled “Fee Schedule”) 
Table Five (entitled “Outdoor Burning and Fireworks Fees”), with the city secretary at least 30 
days prior to the proposed display along with. The applicant must:  

1. Meet all requirements for the same as outlined in Title 28. Insurance; Part 1, 
Texas Department of Insurance; Chapter 34, State Fire Marshal; Subchapter H, 
Storage and sale of fireworks; 

2. Provide state required documentation to the city for review and final approval of 
the event, including recommendations or proposals for any changes as required. 

3. The Fire Marshal, with approval from the City Manager, may issue a permit for 
public fireworks displays; use of pyrotechnics before a proximate audience 
and/or use of flame effects before an audience. The event permitted may only 
be ignited as provided in the application and any restrictions added in the permit. 
At the time of the event, the Fire Marshal may require that the fire department be 
on standby at the site. As a requirement of the permit, the Permitee may be 

https://library.municode.com/tx/burnet/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_CH34CE
https://library.municode.com/tx/burnet/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_CH34CE


 

charged the reasonable costs for the fire department being on standby status for 
the display. 

5608.2.1 The city, its agents, assigns and contractors may sponsor city fireworks displays with 
the express authorization of a majority vote of the city council. The person(s), company or 
entity contracted to operate the display, or use pyrotechnics or flames before an audience 
shall meet all state requirements. The Fire Marshal shall be notified of all city fireworks displays 
and shall review the proposed ignition site, the proposed trajectory and landing site for all 
fireworks displays and make recommendations or proposals for any changes. City sponsored 
fireworks, pyrotechnic and/or flame events shall be exempt from the local permit requirements. 
The Fire Marshal shall be notified of the location for storage of fireworks. 

5608.2.2 The city reserves the right to deny any application. The city reserves the right, with 
or without notice, to revoke any fireworks permit. All permits shall expire, and no longer be 
valid, immediately after the fireworks, pyrotechnic or flame event permitted was to occur. 

Section eight.  Code Amendment.  City Code Chapter 22 (entitled “buildings and 
building regulations”) Article IX (entitled “electrical code”) Section 22-187 (entitled “fees 
and reinspection”) is hereby amended by revising subsection (b) (entitled “schedule of 
fees”) to read as follows: 
 

(b) Schedule of fees. All fees shall be paid to the city by each person doing any 
electrical work for which such fees are required in subsection (a) of this section. 
The permit and inspection fees provided in this subsection shall be paid to the city 
before the issuance of a permit and before any work is started. The fees shall be 
as  stated in Article XXI (entitled “Fee Schedule”) Table Four (entitled “Fire Code 
Permit Fee Schedule”). 

 
Section eight.  Code Amendment.  City Code Chapter 22 (entitled “Buildings and 
Building Regulations”) is hereby amended by the adoption of a new Article XXI (entitled 
“fee schedule”) and recodifying and restating fees set out in Articles I through X in Article 
XXI as attached hereto and incorporated herein.  
 
Section nine. Findings. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby 
found to be true, and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for all 
purposes and are adopted as a part of the judgment and findings of the Council. 

Section ten. Penalty.  A violation of this ordinance is unlawful and subject to City Code 
of Ordinances Sec. 1-6 (entitled “general penalty”).   

Section eleven. Cumulative.  This ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of all 
ordinances and codes, or parts thereof, except where the provisions of this Ordinance are 
in direct conflict with the provisions of such Ordinances, in which event Section 5, (entitled 
“Repealer”) shall be controlling. 

Section twelve. Repealer.  All ordinances and codes, or parts thereof, which are in 
conflict or inconsistent with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the 
extent of such conflict, and the provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling 
as to the matters resolved herein. 



 

Section thirteen.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or the application 
thereof to any person or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this 
Ordinance and the application of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall 
nevertheless be valid, and the City hereby declares that this Ordinance would have been 
enacted without such invalid provision. 

Section fourteen. TOMA  Compliance.  It is officially found, determined, and declared 
that the meeting at which this Ordinance is adopted was conducted in compliance with 
the Texas Open Meeting Act as modified by Executive Orders of the Governor of the 
State of Texas in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Section fifteen. Publication. The publishers of the City Code are authorized to 
amend said Code to reflect the changes adopted herein and to correct typographical 
errors and to format and number paragraphs to conform to the existing Code. 

Section sixteen. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be effective upon the date of final 
adoption hereof and publication as required by law. 

Passed on first reading on the 13th day of July, 2021 
 
Passed, Approved and Adopted on 27th day of July, 2021 
 
 
       CITY OF BURNET 
ATTEST: 
 

        
      Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor 

 
 
      
Kelly Dix, City Secretary 
 
Note:   Article XXI. - Fee Schedule is attached.  



 

Attachment to Ordinance No. 2021-24 
Article XXI. - Fee Schedule. 
This Article establishes fees for permits, inspections and other services provided by the 
City under this Chapter.  Unless a fee is specified elsewhere in this Chapter, all permit 
fees required under Articles I through X of this Chapter are due and payable with an 
application for a permit and are as follows:  

 

Table One. - Building Permit Fees 

Single-family  $0.08 per square foot  
Apartments and duplexes  0.08 per square foot  
Commercial and institutional  0.08 per square foot  
Additions, remodeling, etc.  0.08 per square foot 
 Minimum of 25.00  
Demolition  50.00  
House moving  100.00 plus any additional costs incurred by 

the police department and/or the utility 
department  

Storage sheds in excess of 120 square feet  15.00  
Reinspection  35.00  
Plan review—Bldg. Dept.  100.00 each review  
Plan review—Fire Marshal  100.00 each review  

 

Table Two. - Plumbing Permit Fee Schedule 

New Construction 
Single-family residence  $ 0.08 per square foot  
Apartments and duplexes   0.08 per square foot  
Commercial and institutional   0.08 per square foot  
Repair and Additions 
 Basic permit  $25.00 plus items below  
 Fixture, each    2.50  
 Sewer yard line    2.50  
 Gas yard line    2.50  
 Water heater    2.50  
 Gas piping system    5.50 plus $0.50 each outlet over 

five  
 Lawn sprinkler system    5.00 plus $0.50 each outlet over 

five  
 Swimming pool   10.00  
 Reinspections  35.00  

Table Three. - Mechanical Permit Fees 

Single-family, duplex and apartments  $40.00 per unit  
Commercial and institutional   40.00 per unit  



 

All other types of mechanical equipment regulated by this 
code  

 10.00 per unit  

Reinspection   35.00 per unit  
Table Four. – Fire Code Permit Fees 

Type  Cost  Notes  
Burn Permits    
Residential Burn Permit  $20   
HOA, POA, Subdivision  $40  Community burn location  
Res. or Com. Development  $120   
 
Fireworks  
Displays  

$100   

 
New and Remodel  
Construction  

  

Fire Safety Plan Review  $100  General — New Construction  
Fire Safety Plan Review  $50  General — Major Remodel  
Sprinkler System  $100  < 12,000 sqft  
Sprinkler System  $200  > 12,000 sqft  
Alarm System  $100  < 12,000 sqft  
Alarm System  $200  > 12,000 sqft  
Commercial Hood Suppression  $75   
 
System  
Inspections  

  

Underground Fire Main Inspection  $30   
Sprinkler System Pressure Test  $25   
Sprinkler System Final  $50  < 12,000 sqft  
Sprinkler System Final  $100  > 12,000 sqft  
Alarm System Final  $50  < 12,000 sqft  
Alarm System Final  $100  > 12,000 sqft  
Commercial Hood Suppression 
Final  

$25   

Re-inspection Fees  ½ rate  Of Initial Inspection charge  
 
Licensing  
Inspections  

  

Foster Home  $0   
Group Home  $25   
Day Care  $25   
Nursing Home/Asst. Living  $75   
Hospital  $100   
Private Correction Facility  $50   



 

County or State Corrections Facility  $0   
Insurance Inspection  $25   
 
After Hour  
Inspection Rate  

Fee +  Inspector over time rate — 1 Hr. 
Minimum  

 
Table Five. – Outdoor Burning Fireworks Fees  

The fee for issued permits for the conducting of approved outdoor burning is subject to the following information:  

1. Established Residential or Vacant Lots: $20.00 for 30 calendar days  
2. HOA, POA, of Established Subdivision community Lot: $40.00 for 30 calendar days  
3. Commercial or Residential Development Property under developer control: $150 for 30 calendar 

days  
4. Exception: Extensions may be granted if the time period was shortened due to weather 

conditions, state or county issued burn bans, extended red flag warnings or any other reasonable 
situation as determined by the Fire Marshal.  

The fireworks application fee is $100.00. 
 
 
 

Table Six. - Electrical Permit Fees 

New Construction 
Single-family residence  $0.08 per square foot  
Apartments and duplexes   0.08 per square foot  
Commercial and institutional   0.08 per square foot plus 

$50.00 for service over 200 
amp, plus $20.00 per feeder 
panel  

Remodeling and Additions 
 Basic permit  $25.00 plus items listed 

below  
 Feeder panels   20.00  
 Electric outlets and fixtures    0.20 each  
 Service size   
  100 amp  $30.00  
  200 amp   30.00  
  300 amp   45.00  
  400 amp   60.00  
Other Electrical Charges 
 Construction meter loop  $15.00  
 Mobile home hookup   10.00  
 Swimming pool   10.00  
 Reinspection   35.00  

 
 



 

 
Administration 

 

 

ITEM 4.2 
 
 
David Vaughn 
City Manager 
512.715.3208 
dvaughn@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 
 

Meeting Date:  July 27, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action: AN ORDINANCE 

AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF THE CITY OF BURNET, 
TEXAS COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE 
CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2021; LEVYING 
AN AD VALOREM TAX AND PLEDGING CERTAIN 
SURPLUS REVENUES IN SUPPORT OF THE 
CERTIFICATES; APPROVING AN OFFICIAL STATEMENT, 
A PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT AND OTHER 
AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE AND ISSUANCE 
OF THE CERTIFICATES; AND ORDAINING OTHER 
MATTERS RELATING TO THE ISSUANCE OF THE 
CERTIFICATES: D. Vaughn 

Background: 
  
Information:  
  
Fiscal Impact:  

 
Recommendation: Approve and adopt Ordinance No. 2021-25 as presented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2021-__ 

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF THE CITY OF 
BURNET, TEXAS COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE 
CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2021; LEVYING AN AD 
VALOREM TAX AND PLEDGING CERTAIN SURPLUS REVENUES IN 
SUPPORT OF THE CERTIFICATES; APPROVING AN OFFICIAL 
STATEMENT, A PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT AND 
OTHER AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE AND ISSUANCE OF 
THE CERTIFICATES; AND ORDAINING OTHER MATTERS 
RELATING TO THE ISSUANCE OF THE CERTIFICATES  

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
COUNTY OF BURNET § 
CITY OF BURNET  § 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Burnet, Texas (the "City") deems it 
advisable to issue certificates of obligation in the amount of 6,000,000 (the "Certificates") for the 
purpose of paying contractual obligations incurred or to be incurred (i) constructing, improving, 
and/or renovating a new City Hall facility, including the acquisition of land; (ii) street 
construction and improvements including related drainage, sidewalks, traffic improvements and 
lighting; (iii) airport improvements, including hangars and (iv) payment of professional services 
in connection therewith including legal, engineering, architectural and fiscal fees and the costs of 
issuing the Certificates; and 

WHEREAS, the Certificates hereinafter authorized and designated are to be issued and 
delivered for cash pursuant to Subchapter C of Chapter 271, Local Government Code and 
Chapter 1502, Texas Government Code, as amended; and 

WHEREAS, on May 25, 2021 the City Council passed a resolution authorizing and 
directing the City Secretary to give notice of intention to issue the Certificates; and 

WHEREAS, the notice was published on June 2, 2021 and June 9, 2021 in the Burnet 
Bulletin, a newspaper of general circulation in the City and a "newspaper" as defined in Section 
2051.044, Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City has not received a valid petition from the qualified voters of the 
City protesting the issuance of the Certificates; and 

WHEREAS, it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance was passed was open to the public, and public notice of the time, place and purpose of 
the meeting was given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, it is considered to be in the best interest of the City that the interest bearing 
Certificates be issued; therefor, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET, 
TEXAS: 

Section 1.  RECITALS, AMOUNT AND PURPOSE OF THE CERTIFICATES.  
The recitals set forth in the preamble hereof are incorporated herein and shall have the same 
force and effect as if set forth in this Section.  The Certificates of the City of Burnet, Texas (the 
"City") are hereby authorized to be issued and delivered in the aggregate principal amount of 

25



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

2 

$7,455,000 for the purpose of paying contractual obligations incurred or to be incurred for (i) 
constructing, improving, and/or renovating a new City Hall facility, including the acquisition of 
land; (ii) street construction and improvements including related drainage, sidewalks, traffic 
improvements and lighting; (iii) airport improvements, including hangars and (iv) payment of 
professional services in connection therewith including legal, engineering, architectural and 
fiscal fees and the costs of issuing the Certificates. 
 
 Section 2.  DESIGNATION, DATE, DENOMINATIONS, NUMBERS, AND 
MATURITIES OF CERTIFICATES.  Each certificate issued pursuant to this Ordinance shall 
be designated:  "CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE 
CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2021", and initially there shall be issued, sold, 
and delivered hereunder fully registered certificates, without interest coupons, dated August 18, 
2021, in the denomination and principal amount hereinafter stated, numbered consecutively from 
R-1 upward (except the initial Certificate delivered to the Attorney General of the State of Texas 
which shall be numbered T-1), payable to the respective initial registered owners thereof (as 
designated in Section 12 hereof), or to the registered assignee or assignees of said Certificates or 
any portion or portions thereof (in each case, the "Registered Owner"), and the outstanding 
principal amount of the Certificates shall mature and be payable on August 15 in each of the 
years and in the principal amount, respectively, as set forth in the following schedule: 
 

 
YEAR 

PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT 

 
YEAR 

PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT 

2022  2032  
2023  2033  
2024  2034  
2025  2035  
2026  2036  
2027  2037  
2028  2038  
2029  2039  
2030  2040  
2031  2041  

 
 The term "Certificate" as used in this Ordinance shall mean and include collectively the 
Certificates initially issued and delivered pursuant to this Ordinance and all substitute Certifi-
cates exchanged therefor, as well as all other substitute Certificates and replacement Certificates 
issued pursuant hereto. 
 
 SECTION 3.  INTEREST.  The Certificates scheduled to mature during the years, 
respectively, set forth below shall bear interest from the dates specified in the FORM OF 
CERTIFICATE set forth in this Ordinance to their respective dates of maturity at the following 
rates per annum:  

YEAR RATE YEAR RATE 

2022  2032  
2023  2033  
2024  2034  
2025  2035  
2026  2036  
2027  2037  
2028  2038  



 
BURNET\CTRCO2019:  Ordinance 

3 

2029  2039  
2030  2040  
2031  2041  
    

Interest shall be payable in the manner provided and on the dates stated in the FORM OF 
CERTIFICATE set forth in this Ordinance. 
 
 Section 4.  CHARACTERISTICS OF THE CERTIFICATES.  (a)  Registration, 
Transfer, Conversion and Exchange; Authentication.  The City shall keep or cause to be kept at 
BOKF, NA, Dallas, Texas (the "Paying Agent/Registrar") books or records for the registration of 
the transfer, conversion and exchange of the Certificates (the "Registration Books"), and the City 
hereby appoints the Paying Agent/Registrar as its registrar and transfer agent to keep such books 
or records and make such registrations of transfers, conversions and exchanges under such 
reasonable regulations as the City and Paying Agent/Registrar may prescribe; and the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall make such registrations, transfers, conversions and exchanges as herein 
provided.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall obtain and record in the Registration Books the 
address of the Registered Owner of each Certificate to which payments with respect to the 
Certificates shall be mailed, as herein provided; but it shall be the duty of each Registered Owner 
to notify the Paying Agent/Registrar in writing of the address to which payments shall be mailed, 
and such interest payments shall not be mailed unless such notice has been given.  The City 
shall have the right to inspect the Registration Books during regular business hours of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, but otherwise the Paying Agent/Registrar shall keep the Registration Books 
confidential and, unless otherwise required by law, shall not permit their inspection by any other 
entity.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall make the Registration Books available within the State 
of Texas.  The City shall pay the Paying Agent/Registrar's standard or customary fees and 
charges for making such registration, transfer, conversion, exchange and delivery of a substitute 
Certificate or Certificates.  Registration of assignments, transfers, conversions and exchanges of 
Certificates shall be made in the manner provided and with the effect stated in the FORM OF 
CERTIFICATE set forth in this Ordinance.  Each substitute Certificate shall bear a letter and/or 
number to distinguish it from each other Certificate. 
 
 Except as provided in Section 4(c) of this Ordinance, an authorized representative of the 
Paying Agent/Registrar shall, before the delivery of any such Certificate, date and manually sign 
said Certificate, and no such Certificate shall be deemed to be issued or outstanding unless such 
Certificate is so executed.  The Paying Agent/Registrar promptly shall cancel all paid 
Certificates and Certificates surrendered for conversion and exchange.  No additional 
ordinances, orders, or resolutions need be passed or adopted by the governing body of the City or 
any other body or person so as to accomplish the foregoing conversion and exchange of any 
Certificate or portion thereof, and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall provide for the printing, 
execution, and delivery of the substitute Certificates in the manner prescribed herein, and said 
Certificates shall be printed or typed on paper of customary weight and strength.  Pursuant to 
Chapter 1201, Texas Government Code, as amended, and particularly Subchapter D thereof, the 
duty of conversion and exchange of Certificates as aforesaid is hereby imposed upon the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, and, upon the execution of said Certificate, the converted and exchanged 
Certificate shall be valid, incontestable, and enforceable in the same manner and with the same 
effect as the Certificate which initially was issued and delivered pursuant to this Ordinance, 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the Comptroller of 
Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 
 



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

4 

 (b)  Payment of Certificates and Interest.  The City hereby further appoints the Paying 
Agent/Registrar to act as the paying agent for paying the principal of and interest on the 
Certificates, all as provided in this Ordinance.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall keep proper 
records of all payments made by the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar with respect to the 
Certificates, and of all conversions and exchanges of Certificates, and all replacements of Certifi-
cates, as provided in this Ordinance.  However, in the event of a nonpayment of interest on a 
scheduled payment date, and for thirty (30) days thereafter, a new record date for such interest 
payment (a "Special Record Date") will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and 
when funds for the payment of such interest have been received from the City.  Notice of the 
past due interest shall be sent at least five (5) business days prior to the Special Record Date by 
United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, to the address of each Registered Owner 
appearing on the Registration Books at the close of business on the last business day next 
preceding the date of mailing of such notice. 
 
 (c)  In General.  The Certificate (i) shall be issued in fully registered form, without 
interest coupons, with the principal of and interest on such Certificate to be payable only to the 
Registered Owners thereof, (ii) may be redeemed prior to their scheduled maturities (notice of 
which shall be given to the Paying Agent/Registrar by the City at least 45 days prior to any such 
redemption date which shall indicate to which principal installments the redemption shall be 
applied), (iii) may be converted and exchanged for other Certificates, (iv) may be transferred and 
assigned in whole, but not in part, (v) shall have the characteristics, (vi) shall be signed, sealed, 
executed and authenticated, (vii) the principal of and interest on the Certificates shall be payable, 
and (viii) shall be administered and the Paying Agent/Registrar and the City shall have certain 
duties and responsibilities with respect to the Certificates, all as provided, and in the manner and 
to the effect as required or indicated, in the FORM OF CERTIFICATE set forth in this 
Ordinance.  The Certificate initially issued and delivered pursuant to this Ordinance is not 
required to be, and shall not be, authenticated by the Paying Agent/Registrar, but on each 
substitute Certificate issued in conversion of and exchange or substitute for any Certificate or 
Certificates issued under this Ordinance the Paying Agent/Registrar shall execute the PAYING 
AGENT/REGISTRAR'S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE, in the form set forth in the 
FORM OF CERTIFICATE. 
 
 (d)  Substitute Paying Agent/Registrar.  The City covenants with the Registered Owners 
of the Certificates that at all times while the Certificates are outstanding the City will provide a 
competent and legally qualified bank, trust company, financial institution, or other agency to act 
as and perform the services of Paying Agent/Registrar for the Certificates under this Ordinance, 
and that the Paying Agent/Registrar will be one entity.  The City reserves the right to, and may, 
at its option, change the Paying Agent/Registrar upon not less than 30 days written notice to the 
Paying Agent/Registrar, to be effective at such time which will not disrupt or delay payment on 
the next principal or interest payment date after such notice.  In the event that the entity at any 
time acting as Paying Agent/Registrar (or its successor by merger, acquisition, or other method) 
should resign or otherwise cease to act as such, the City covenants that promptly it will appoint a 
competent and legally qualified bank, trust company, financial institution, or other agency to act 
as Paying Agent/Registrar under this Ordinance. Upon any change in the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, the previous Paying Agent/Registrar promptly shall transfer and deliver the 
Registration Books (or a copy thereof), along with all other pertinent books and records relating 
to the Certificates, to the new Paying Agent/Registrar designated and appointed by the City.  
Upon any change in the Paying Agent/Registrar, the City promptly will cause a written notice 



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

5 

thereof to be sent by the new Paying Agent/Registrar to each Registered Owner of the 
Certificates, by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, which notice also shall give the 
address of the new Paying Agent/Registrar.  By accepting the position and performing as such, 
each Paying Agent/Registrar shall be deemed to have agreed to the provisions of this Ordinance, 
and a certified copy of this Ordinance shall be delivered to each Paying Agent/Registrar. 
 
 (e)  Book-Entry-Only System.  The Certificates issued in exchange for the Certificates 
initially issued as provided in Section 4(i) shall be issued in the form of a separate single fully 
registered Certificate for each of the maturities thereof registered in the name of Cede & Co., as 
nominee of The Depository Trust Company of New York ("DTC") and except as provided in 
subsection (f) hereof, all of the outstanding Certificates shall be registered in the name of Cede & 
Co., as nominee of DTC. 
 
 With respect to Certificates registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, 
the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to any 
securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and certain other 
organizations on whose behalf DTC was created to hold securities to facilitate the clearance and 
settlement of securities transactions among DTC participants (the "DTC Participant") or to any 
person on behalf of whom such a DTC Participant holds an interest in the Certificates.  Without 
limiting the immediately preceding sentence, the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have 
no responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the accuracy of the records of DTC, Cede & 
Co. or any DTC Participant with respect to any ownership interest in the Certificates, (ii) the 
delivery to any DTC Participant or any other person, other than a Registered Owner, as shown on 
the Registration Books, of any notice with respect to the Certificates, or (iii) the payment to any 
DTC Participant or any person, other than a Registered Owner, as shown on the Registration 
Books of any amount with respect to principal of or interest on the Certificates.  
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, but to the extent 
permitted by law, the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to treat and consider 
the person in whose name each Certificate is registered in the Registration Books as the absolute 
owner of such Certificate for the purpose of payment of principal of and interest, with respect to 
such Certificate, for the purposes of registering transfers with respect to such Certificate, and for 
all other purposes of registering transfers with respect to such Certificates, and for all other 
purposes whatsoever.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall pay all principal of and interest on the 
Certificates only to or upon the order of the respective Registered Owners, as shown in the 
Registration Books as provided in this Ordinance, or their respective attorneys duly authorized in 
writing, and all such payments shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy and discharge the 
City's obligations with respect to payment of principal of and interest on the Certificates to the 
extent of the sum or sums so paid.  No person other than a Registered Owner, as shown in the 
Registration Books, shall receive a Certificate evidencing the obligation of the City to make 
payments of principal, and interest pursuant to this Ordinance.  Upon delivery by DTC to the 
Paying Agent/Registrar of written notice to the effect that DTC has determined to substitute a 
new nominee in place of Cede & Co., and subject to the provisions in this Ordinance with 
respect to interest checks being mailed to the registered owner at the close of business on the 
Record Date the word "Cede & Co." in this Ordinance shall refer to such new nominee of DTC. 
 
 (f)  Successor Securities Depository; Transfer Outside Book-Entry-Only System.  In the 
event that the City determines to discontinue the book-entry system through DTC or a successor 
or DTC determines to discontinue providing its services with respect to the Certificate, the City 



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

6 

shall either (i) appoint a successor securities depository, qualified to act as such under Section 
17(a) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, notify DTC and DTC 
Participants of the appointment of such successor securities depository and transfer one or more  
separate Certificates to such successor securities depository or (ii) notify DTC and DTC 
Participants of the availability through DTC of Certificates and transfer one or more separate 
Certificates to DTC Participants having Certificates credited to their DTC accounts.  In such 
event, the Certificates shall no longer be restricted to being registered in the Registration Books 
in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, but may be registered in the name of the 
successor securities depository, or its nominee, or in whatever name or names the Registered 
Owner transferring or exchanging Certificate shall designate, in accordance with the provisions 
of this Ordinance. 
 
 (g)  Payments to Cede & Co.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to 
the contrary, so long as any Certificate is registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of 
DTC, all payments with respect to principal of, and interest on such Certificate and all notices 
with respect to such Certificate shall be made and given, respectively, in the manner provided in 
the Letter of Representations of the City to DTC. 
 
 (h)  DTC Blanket Letter of Representations.  The City confirms execution of a Blanket 
Issuer Letter of Representations with DTC establishing the Book-Entry-Only System which will 
be utilized with respect to the Certificates. 
 
 (i)  Cancellation of Initial Certificate.  On the closing date, one Initial  Certificate 
representing the entire principal amount of the Certificates, payable in stated installments to the 
order of the purchaser of the Certificates or its designee set forth in Section 12 of this Ordinance, 
executed by manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor or Mayor Pro-tem and City Secretary, 
approved by the Attorney General of Texas, and registered and manually signed by the 
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, will be delivered to such Underwriters set 
forth in Section 12 of this Ordinance or its designee.  Upon payment for the Initial Certificate, 
the Paying Agent/Registrar shall cancel the Initial Certificate and deliver to DTC on behalf of 
such Underwriters one registered definitive Certificate for each year of maturity of the 
Certificates, in the aggregate principal amount of all the Certificates for such maturity. 
 
 Section 5.  FORM OF CERTIFICATE.  The form of the Certificate, including the 
form of Paying Agent/Registrar's Authentication Certificate, the form of Assignment and the 
form of Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas to be 
attached to the Certificate initially issued and delivered pursuant to this Ordinance, shall be, 
respectively, substantially as follows, with such appropriate variations, omissions or insertions as 
are permitted or required by this Ordinance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

7 

FORM OF CERTIFICATE 
 
NO. R- UNITED STATES OF AMERICA   PRINCIPAL 
     STATE OF TEXAS      AMOUNT 
       COUNTY OF BURNET    $________ 

CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS 
COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION 

SERIES 2021 
 
 

INTEREST 
RATE 

DATE OF 
CERTIFICATE 

MATURITY 
DATE 

 
CUSIP NO. 

 August 18, 2021   
 
 
REGISTERED OWNER: 
 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:      DOLLARS 
 
 
 ON THE MATURITY DATE specified above, the CITY OF BURNET, in the County 
of Burnet, State of Texas (the "City"), being a political subdivision of the State of Texas, hereby 
promises to pay to the Registered Owner set forth above, or registered assigns (hereinafter called 
the "Registered Owner") the principal amount set forth above, and to pay interest thereon from 
the Date of Delivery, on February 15, 2022 and semiannually on each February 15 and August 
15 thereafter to the maturity date specified above, or the date of redemption prior to maturity, at 
the interest rate per annum specified above; except that if this Certificate is required to be 
authenticated and the date of its authentication is later than the first Record Date (hereinafter 
defined), such principal amount shall bear interest from the interest payment date next preceding 
the date of authentication, unless such date of authentication is after any Record Date but on or 
before the next following interest payment date, in which case such principal amount shall bear 
interest from such next following interest payment date; provided, however, that if on the date of 
authentication hereof the interest on the Certificate or Certificates, if any, for which this 
Certificate is being exchanged or converted from is due but has not been paid, then this 
Certificate shall bear interest from the date to which such interest has been paid in full.  
 
 THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON this Certificate are payable in lawful 
money of the United States of America, without exchange or collection charges.  The principal 
of this Certificate shall be paid to the Registered Owner hereof upon presentation and surrender 
of this Certificate at maturity, or upon the date fixed for its redemption prior to maturity, at 
BOKF, NA, which is the "Paying Agent/Registrar" for this Certificate at its designated office for 
payment currently, Dallas, Texas (the "Designated Payment/Transfer Office").  The payment of 
interest on this Certificate shall be made by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the Registered Owner 
hereof on each interest payment date by check or draft, dated as of such interest payment date, 
drawn by the Paying Agent/Registrar on, and payable solely from, funds of the City required by 
the ordinance authorizing the issuance of this Certificate (the "Ordinance") to be on deposit with 
the Paying Agent/Registrar for such purpose as hereinafter provided; and such check or draft 



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

8 

shall be sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, on 
each such interest payment date, to the Registered Owner hereof, at its address as it appeared at 
the close of business on the last business day of the preceding month each such date (the "Record 
Date") on the registration books kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar (the "Registration Books").  
In addition, interest may be paid by such other method, acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar, 
requested by, and at the risk and expense of, the Registered Owner.  In the event of a 
non-payment of interest on a scheduled payment date, and for 30 days thereafter, a new record 
date for such interest payment (a "Special Record Date") will be established by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment of such interest have been received from the 
City.  Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past due 
interest (which shall be 15 days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five business 
days prior to the Special Record Date by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, to the 
address of each owner of a Certificate appearing on the Registration Books at the close of 
business on the last business day next preceding the date of mailing of such notice.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, during any period in which ownership of the Certificate is 
determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for the Certificate, any payment to the 
securities depository, or its nominee or registered assigns, shall be made in accordance with 
existing arrangements between the City and the securities depository.   
     
 ANY ACCRUED INTEREST due at maturity or upon the redemption of this Certificate 
prior to maturity as provided herein shall be paid to the Registered Owner upon presentation and 
surrender of this Certificate for redemption and payment at the Designated Payment/Transfer 
Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar.  The City covenants with the Registered Owner of this 
Certificate that on or before each principal payment date, interest payment date, and accrued 
interest payment date for this Certificate it will make available to the Paying Agent/Registrar, 
from the "Interest and Sinking Fund" created by the Ordinance, the amounts required to provide 
for the payment, in immediately available funds, of all principal of and interest on the 
Certificates, when due. 
 
 IF THE DATE for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Certificate shall be 
a Saturday, Sunday, a legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions in the city where the 
principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are authorized by law or 
executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which 
is not such a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or day on which banking institutions are authorized 
to close; and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the 
original date payment was due. 
 
 THIS CERTIFICATE is dated August 18, 2021, authorized in accordance with the 
Constitution and laws of the State of Texas in the principal amount of $_______,000,  for the 
purpose of paying contractual obligations incurred or to be incurred by the City for: (i) 
constructing, improving, and/or renovating a new City Hall facility, including the acquisition of 
land; (ii) street construction and improvements including related drainage, sidewalks, traffic 
improvements and lighting; (iii) airport improvements, including hangars and (iv) payment of 
professional services in connection therewith including legal, engineering, architectural and 
fiscal fees and the costs of issuing the Certificates. 
 
 ON AUGUST 15, 2030, or on any date thereafter, the Certificates of this Series maturing 
on and after August 15, 2031 may be redeemed prior to their scheduled maturities, at the option 



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

9 

of the City, with funds derived from any available and lawful source, at par plus accrued interest 
to the date fixed for redemption as a whole, or in part, and, if in part, the particular maturities to 
be redeemed shall be selected and designated by the City and if less than all of a maturity is to be 
redeemed, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall determine by lot the Certificates, or a portion 
thereof, within such maturity to be redeemed (provided that a portion of a Certificate may be 
redeemed only in an integral multiple of $5,000). 
 
 WITH RESPECT TO any optional redemption of the Certificates, unless certain 
prerequisites to such redemption required by the Ordinance have been met and moneys sufficient 
to pay the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Certificates to be redeemed shall 
have been received by the Paying Agent/Registrar prior to the giving of such notice of 
redemption, such notice shall state that said redemption may, at the option of the City, be 
conditional upon the satisfaction of such prerequisites and receipt of such moneys by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar on or prior to the date fixed for such redemption, or upon any prerequisite set 
forth in such notice of redemption.  If a conditional notice of redemption is given and such 
prerequisites to the redemption and sufficient moneys are not received, such notice shall be of no 
force and effect, the City shall not redeem such Certificates and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall 
give notice, in the manner in which the notice of redemption was given, to the effect that the 
Certificates have not been redeemed. 
 
 [THE CERTIFICATES MATURING ON AUGUST 15, ________ are subject to 
mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to maturity in the following amounts on the following 
dates and at a price of par plus accrued interest to the redemption date ("Term Certificates"). 
 

Term Certificates Maturing on August 15, 20___ 
 

Redemption Date       Principal Amount 
August 15, 20__    $___ 
August 15, 20__*    $_____*  
_______________ 
*Final Maturity 
 
 

 THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT of the Term Certificates required to be redeemed 
pursuant to the operation of the mandatory sinking fund redemption provisions shall be reduced, 
at the option of the City by the principal amount of any Term Certificates of the stated maturity 
which, at least 50 days prior to a mandatory redemption date, (1) shall have been acquired by the 
City at a price not exceeding the principal amount of such Term Certificates plus accrued interest 
to the date of purchase thereof, and delivered to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation, (2) 
shall have been purchased and canceled by the Paying Agent/Registrar at the request of the City 
with monies in the Interest and Sinking Fund at a price not exceeding the principal amount of the 
Term Certificates plus accrued interest to the date of purchase thereof, or (3) shall have been 
redeemed pursuant to the optional redemption provisions and not theretofore credited against a 
mandatory sinking fund redemption requirement. 
 
 NO LESS THAN 30 days prior to the date fixed for any such redemption, unless the 
Purchaser (as defined in the Ordinance) is the sole Registered Owner of all of the outstanding 
principal amount of the Certificates, the City shall cause the Paying Agent/Registrar to send 



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

10 

notice by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid to the Registered Owner of each 
Certificate to be redeemed at its address as it appeared on the Registration Books of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the business day next preceding the date of mailing 
such notice and to major securities depositories, national bond rating agencies and bond 
information services; provided, however, that the failure to send, mail or receive such notice, or 
any defect therein or in the sending or mailing thereof, shall not affect the validity or effective-
ness of the proceedings for the redemption of the Certificates.  By the date fixed for any such 
redemption due provision shall be made with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the payment of the 
required redemption price for the Certificates.  If due provision for such payment is made, all as 
provided above, the Certificates thereby automatically shall be treated as redeemed prior to its 
scheduled maturity, and it shall not bear interest after the date fixed for redemption, and it shall 
not be regarded as being outstanding except for the right of the Registered Owner to receive the 
redemption price from the Paying Agent/Registrar out of the funds provided for such payment. 
 
 ALL CERTIFICATES OF THIS SERIES are issuable solely as fully registered 
certificates, without interest coupons, in the denomination of $5,000 and any integral multiple of 
$5,000 in excess thereof.  As provided in the Ordinance, this Certificate may, at the request of 
the Registered Owner or the assignee or assignees hereof, be assigned, transferred, converted 
into and exchanged for a like aggregate principal amount of fully registered certificate, without 
interest coupons, payable to the appropriate Registered Owner, assignee or assignees, as the case 
may be, having the same denomination or denominations of $5,000 and in any integral multiple 
of $5,000 in excess thereof as requested in writing by the appropriate Registered Owner, 
assignee or assignees, as the case may be, upon surrender of this Certificate to the Paying 
Agent/Registrar for cancellation, all in accordance with the form and procedures set forth in the 
Ordinance.  Among other requirements for such assignment and transfer, this Certificate must 
be presented and surrendered to the Paying Agent/Registrar, together with proper instruments of 
assignment, in form and with guarantee of signatures satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, 
evidencing assignment of this Certificate or any portion or portions hereof in any denomination 
of $5,000 and any integral multiple of $5,000 in excess thereof to the assignee or assignees in 
whose name or names this Certificate or any such portion or portions hereof is or are to be 
registered.  The form of Assignment printed or endorsed on this Certificate may be executed by 
the Registered Owner to evidence the assignment hereof, but such method is not exclusive, and 
other instruments of assignment satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar may be used to 
evidence the assignment of this Certificate or any portion or portions hereof from time to time by 
the Registered Owner.  The Paying Agent/Registrar's reasonable standard or customary fees and 
charges for assigning, transferring, converting and exchanging any Certificate or portion thereof 
will be paid by the City.  In any circumstance, any taxes or governmental charges required to be 
paid with respect thereto shall be paid by the one requesting such assignment, transfer, 
conversion or exchange, as a condition precedent to the exercise of such privilege.  The Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall not be required to make any such transfer, conversion, or exchange (i) 
during the period commencing with the close of business on any Record Date and ending with 
the opening of business on the next following principal or interest payment date, or (ii) with 
respect to any Certificate or any portion thereof called for redemption prior to maturity, within 
45 days prior to its redemption date; provided, however, such limitation of transfer shall not be 
applicable to an exchange by the Registered Owner of the unredeemed balance of the 
Certificates. 
 
 WHENEVER the beneficial ownership of this Certificate is determined by a book entry 
at a securities depository for the Certificate, the foregoing requirements of holding, delivering or 



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

11 

transferring this Certificate shall be modified to require the appropriate person or entity to meet 
the requirements of the securities depository as to registering or transferring the book entry to 
produce the same effect. 
 
 IN THE EVENT any Paying Agent/Registrar for the Certificates is changed by the City, 
resigns, or otherwise ceases to act as such, the City has covenanted in the Ordinance that it 
promptly will appoint a competent and legally qualified substitute therefor, and cause written 
notice thereof to be mailed to the Registered Owner of the Certificates. 
 
 IT IS HEREBY certified, recited and covenanted that this Certificate has been duly and 
validly authorized, issued and delivered; that all acts, conditions and things required or proper to 
be performed, exist and be done precedent to or in the authorization, issuance and delivery of this 
Certificate have been performed, existed and been done in accordance with law; and that annual 
ad valorem taxes sufficient to provide for the payment of the interest on and principal of this 
Certificate, as such interest comes due and such principal matures, have been levied and ordered 
to be levied against all taxable property in said City, and have been pledged for such payment, 
within the limit prescribed by law, and that this Certificate, together with other obligations of the 
City, is additionally secured by and payable from the surplus revenues of the City's Waterworks 
and Sewer System, remaining after payment of all operation and maintenance expenses thereof, 
and all debt service, reserve and other requirements in connection with all of the City's revenue 
bonds or other obligations (now or hereafter outstanding), which are payable from all or part of 
the Net Revenues of the City's Waterworks and Sewer System, which amount shall not exceed 
$1,000 all as provided in the Ordinance. 
 
 BY BECOMING the Registered Owner of this Certificate, the Registered Owner thereby 
acknowledges all of the terms and provisions of the Ordinance, agrees to be bound by such terms 
and provisions, acknowledges that the Ordinance is duly recorded and available for inspection in 
the official minutes and records of the governing body of the City, and agrees that the terms and 
provisions of this Certificate and the Ordinance constitute a contract between each Registered 
Owner hereof and the City. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Certificate to be signed with the 
manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor of the City and countersigned with the manual or 
facsimile signature of the City Secretary of said City, and has caused the official seal of the City 
to be duly impressed, or placed in facsimile, on this Certificate. 
 
                                  _____                                            
City Secretary        Mayor 
 
(CITY SEAL) 
 

FORM OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR'S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE 
 

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR'S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE 
(To be executed if this Certificate is not accompanied by an 

executed Registration Certificate of the Comptroller 
of Public Accounts of the State of Texas) 

 
 



 It is hereby certified that this Certificate has been issued under the provisions of the 
Ordinance described in the text of this Certificate; and that this Certificate has been issued in 
conversion or replacement of, or in exchange for, a certificate, certificates, or a portion of a 
certificate or certificates of a Series which originally was approved by the Attorney General of 
the State of Texas and registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 
 

Dated      BOKF, NA 
       Paying Agent/Registrar 
 
 
       By:______________________________  
          Authorized Representative 
 

FORM OF ASSIGNMENT: 
 

ASSIGNMENT 
 
For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto  
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
Please insert Social Security or Taxpayer 
Identification Number of Transferee 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
  (Please print or typewrite name and address, 
      including zip code, of Transferee) 
 
 _____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
the within Certificate and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
___________________________________________, attorney, to register the transfer of the 
within Certificate on the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the 
premises. 
 
Dated:  ___________________________ 
 
Signature Guaranteed: 
 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 

NOTICE:  Signature(s) must be guaranteed 
by a member firm of the New York Stock 
Exchange or a commercial bank or trust 
company. 

 NOTICE:  The signature above must 
correspond with the name of the Registered 
Owner as it appears upon the front of this 
Certificate in every particular, without 
alteration or enlargement or any change 
whatsoever. 



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

13 

 
FORM OF REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE OF 

THE COMPTROLLER OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS: 
 
 COMPTROLLER'S REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE:  REGISTER NO. 
 
 I hereby certify that this Certificate has been examined, certified as to validity and 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and that this Certificate has been regis-
tered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas.  
 
 Witness my signature and seal this 
       
       ______________________________ 
       Comptroller of Public Accounts 
           of the State of Texas 
 
(COMPTROLLER'S SEAL) 
 

INSERTIONS FOR THE INITIAL CERTIFICATE 
 
 The Initial Certificate shall be in the form set forth in this Section, except that: 
 

A.  immediately under the name of the Certificates, the headings "INTEREST RATE" 
and "MATURITY DATE" shall both be completed with the words “As Shown Below” 
and "CUSIP NO." shall be deleted. 

 
B.  the first paragraph shall be deleted and the following will be inserted:   

 
 "ON THE DATE SPECIFIED BELOW,  the City of Burnet, Texas (the "City"), being 
a political subdivision, hereby promises to pay the annual installments set forth below to the 
Registered Owner specified above, or registered assigns (hereinafter called the "Registered 
Owner"), on August 15 in each of the years, in the principal installments in the following 
schedule and bearing interest at the per annum rate stated above: 
 

Year  Principal Amount  Interest Rates 
 

(Information from Sections 2 and 3 to be inserted) 
 
The City promises to pay interest on the unpaid principal amount hereof (calculated on the basis 
of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months) from the Closing Date at the respective Interest Rate 
per annum specified above.  Interest is payable on February 15, 2022 and semiannually on each 
August 15 and February 15 thereafter to the date of payment of the principal installment 
specified above; except, that if this Certificate is required to be authenticated and the date of its 
authentication is later than the first Record Date (hereinafter defined), such principal amount 
shall bear interest from the interest payment date next preceding the date of authentication, 
unless such date of authentication is after any Record Date but on or before the next following 
interest payment date, in which case such principal amount shall bear interest from such next 



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

14 

following interest payment date; provided, however, that if on the date of authentication hereof 
the interest on the Certificate or Certificates, if any, for which this Certificate is being exchanged 
is due but has not been paid, then this Certificate shall bear interest from the date to which such 
interest has been paid in full." 
 

C.  The Initial Certificate shall be numbered "T-1." 
 
 Section 6.  INTEREST AND SINKING FUND.  A special "Interest and Sinking 
Fund" is hereby created and shall be established and maintained by the City at an official 
depository bank of said City.  Said Interest and Sinking Fund shall be kept separate and apart 
from all other funds and accounts of said City, and shall be used only for paying the interest on 
and principal of said Certificates.  All ad valorem taxes levied and collected for and on account 
of said Certificates shall be deposited, as collected, to the credit of said Interest and Sinking 
Fund.  During each year while any of said Certificates are outstanding and unpaid, the 
governing body of said City shall compute and ascertain a rate and amount of ad valorem tax 
which will be sufficient to raise and produce the money required to pay the interest on said 
Certificates as such interest comes due, and to provide and maintain a sinking fund adequate to 
pay the principal of said Certificates as such principal matures (but never less than 2% of the 
original amount of said Certificates as a sinking fund each year); and said tax shall be based on 
the latest approved tax rolls of said City, with full allowances being made for tax delinquencies 
and the cost of tax collection.  Said rate and amount of ad valorem tax is hereby levied, and is 
hereby ordered to be levied, against all taxable property in said City, for each year while any of 
said Certificates are outstanding and unpaid, and said tax shall be assessed and collected each 
such year and deposited to the credit of the aforesaid Interest and Sinking Fund.  Said ad 
valorem taxes sufficient to provide for the payment of the interest on and principal of said 
Certificates, as such interest comes due and such principal matures, are hereby pledged for such 
payment, within the limit prescribed by law.  Accrued interest and any premium on the 
Certificates shall be deposited in the Interest and Sinking Fund and used to pay interest on the 
Certificates. 
 
 Section 7.  REVENUES. The Certificates together with other obligations of the City, 
are additionally secured by and shall be payable from a limited pledge of the surplus revenues of 
the City's Waterworks and Sewer System remaining after payment of all operation and 
maintenance expenses thereof, and all debt service, reserve, and other requirements in 
connection with all of the City's revenue bonds or other obligation (now or hereafter outstanding) 
which are payable from all or any part of the net revenues of the City's Waterworks and Sewer 
System, with such amount not to exceed $1,000 constituting "Surplus Revenues."  The City 
shall deposit such Surplus Revenues to the credit of the Interest and Sinking Fund created 
pursuant to Section 6, to the extent necessary to pay the principal and interest on the Certificates.  
Notwithstanding the requirements of Section 6, if Surplus Revenues are actually on deposit or 
budgeted for deposit in the Interest and Sinking Fund in advance of the time when ad valorem 
taxes are scheduled to be levied for any year, then the amount of taxes which otherwise would 
have been required to be levied pursuant to Section 6 may be reduced to the extent and by the 
amount of the Surplus Revenues then on deposit in the Interest and Sinking Fund or budgeted for 
deposit therein. 
 



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

15 

 The Mayor of the City Council of the City and the City Secretary of the City are hereby 
ordered to do any and all things necessary to accomplish the transfer of monies to the Interest 
and Sinking Fund of this issue in ample time to pay such items of principal and interest. 
 
 Section 8.  DEFEASANCE OF CERTIFICATES.  (a) Any Certificate and the 
interest thereon shall be deemed to be paid, retired and no longer outstanding (a "Defeased 
Certificate") within the meaning of this Ordinance, except to the extent provided in subsections 
(c) and (e) of this Section 8, when payment of the principal of such Certificate, plus interest 
thereon to the due date or dates (whether such due date or dates be by reason of maturity, upon 
redemption, or otherwise) either (i) shall have been made or caused to be made in accordance 
with the terms thereof (including the giving of any required notice of redemption or the 
establishment of irrevocable provisions for the giving of such notice) or (ii) shall have been 
provided for on or before such due date by irrevocably depositing with or making available to the 
Paying Agent/Registrar or an eligible trust company or commercial bank for such payment (1) 
lawful money of the United States of America sufficient to make such payment, (2) Defeasance 
Securities, certified by an independent public accounting firm of national reputation to mature as 
to principal and interest in such amounts and at such times as will ensure the availability, without 
reinvestment, of sufficient money to provide for such payment and when proper arrangements 
have been made by the City with the Paying Agent/Registrar or an eligible trust company or 
commercial bank for the payment of its services until all Defeased Certificates shall have 
become due and payable or (3) any combination of (1) and (2).  At such time as a Certificate 
shall be deemed to be a Defeased Certificate hereunder, as aforesaid, such Certificate and the 
interest thereon shall no longer be secured by, payable from, or entitled to the benefits of, the ad 
valorem taxes or revenues herein levied and pledged as provided in this Ordinance, and such 
principal and interest shall be payable solely from such money or Defeasance Securities. 
 
 (b)  The deposit under clause (ii) of subsection (a) shall be deemed a payment of a 
Certificate as aforesaid when proper notice of redemption of such Certificates shall have been 
given or upon the establishment of irrevocable provisions for the giving of such notice, in 
accordance with this Ordinance.  Any money so deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar or 
an eligible trust company or commercial bank as provided in this Section may at the discretion of 
the City Council of the City also be invested in Defeasance Securities, maturing in the amounts 
and at the times as hereinbefore set forth, and all income from all Defeasance Securities in 
possession of the Paying Agent/Registrar or an eligible trust company or commercial bank 
pursuant to this Section which is not required for the payment of such Certificate and premium, 
if any, and interest thereon with respect to which such money has been so deposited, shall be 
remitted to the City Council of the City. 
 
 (c) Notwithstanding any provision of any other Section of this Ordinance which may be 
contrary to the provisions of this Section, all money or Defeasance Securities set aside and held 
in trust pursuant to the provisions of this Section for the payment of principal of the Certificates 
and premium, if any, and interest thereon, shall be applied to and used solely for the payment of 
the particular Certificates and premium, if any, and interest thereon, with respect to which such 
money or Defeasance Securities have been so set aside in trust.  Until all Defeased Certificates 
shall have become due and payable, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall perform the services of 
Paying Agent/Registrar for such Defeased Certificates the same as if they had not been defeased, 



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

16 

and the City shall make proper arrangements to provide and pay for such services as required by 
this Ordinance. 
 
 (d) Notwithstanding anything elsewhere in this Ordinance, if money or Defeasance 
Securities have been deposited or set aside with the Paying Agent/Registrar or an eligible trust 
company or commercial bank pursuant to this Section for the payment of Certificates and such 
Certificates shall not have in fact been actually paid in full, no amendment of the provisions of 
this Section shall be made without the consent of the registered owner of each Certificate 
affected thereby. 
 
 (e) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (a) immediately above, to the extent 
that, upon the defeasance of any Defeased Certificate to be paid at its maturity, the City retains 
the right under Texas law to later call that Defeased Certificate for redemption in accordance 
with the provisions of this Ordinance, the City may call such Defeased Certificate for redemption 
upon complying with the provisions of Texas law and upon the satisfaction of the provisions of 
subsection (a) immediately above with respect to such Defeased Certificate as though it was 
being defeased at the time of the exercise of the option to redeem the Defeased Certificate and 
the effect of the redemption is taken into account in determining the sufficiency of the provisions 
made for the payment of the Defeased Certificate. 
 
 As used in this Section, "Defeasance Securities" means (i) Federal Securities, (ii) 
noncallable obligations of an agency or instrumentality of the United States of America, 
including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the agency or 
instrumentality and that, on the date the City Council of the City adopts or approves proceedings 
authorizing the issuance of refunding bonds or otherwise provide for the funding of an escrow to 
effect the defeasance of the Certificates are rated as to investment quality by a nationally 
recognized investment rating firm not less than "AAA" or its equivalent, and (iii) noncallable 
obligations of a state or an agency or a county, municipality, or other political subdivision of a 
state that have been refunded and that, on the date the City Council of the City adopts or 
approves proceedings authorizing the issuance of refunding bonds or otherwise provide for the 
funding of an escrow to effect the defeasance of the Certificates, are rated as to investment 
quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm no less than "AAA" or its equivalent.  
"Federal Securities" as used herein means direct, noncallable obligations of the United States of 
America, including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of 
America (including Interest Strips of the Resolution Funding Corporation). 
 
 Section 9.  DAMAGED, MUTILATED, LOST, STOLEN, OR DESTROYED 
CERTIFICATES.  (a)  Replacement Certificates.  In the event any outstanding Certificate is 
damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall cause to be 
printed, executed and delivered, a new certificate of the same principal amount, maturity and 
interest rate, as the damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed Certificate, in replacement for 
such Certificate in the manner hereinafter provided. 
 
 (b)  Application for Replacement Certificates.  Application for replacement of damaged, 
mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed Certificates shall be made by the Registered Owner thereof to 
the Paying Agent/Registrar.  In every case of loss, theft or destruction of a Certificate, the 
Registered Owner applying for a replacement certificate shall furnish to the City and to the 



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

17 

Paying Agent/Registrar such security or indemnity as may be required by them to save each of 
them harmless from any loss or damage with respect thereto.  Also, in every case of loss, theft 
or destruction of a Certificate, the Registered Owner shall furnish to the City and to the Paying 
Agent/Registrar evidence to their satisfaction of the loss, theft or destruction of such Certificate, 
as the case may be.  In every case of damage or mutilation of a Certificate, the Registered 
Owner shall surrender to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation the Certificate so damaged 
or mutilated. 
 
 (c)  No Default Occurred.  Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, in 
the event any such Certificates shall have matured, and no default has occurred which is then 
continuing in the payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, or interest on the 
Certificates, the City may authorize the payment of the same (without surrender thereof except in 
the case of a damaged or mutilated Certificate) instead of issuing a replacement Certificate, 
provided security or indemnity is furnished as above provided in this Section. 
 
 (d)  Charge for Issuing Replacement Certificates.  Prior to the issuance of any 
replacement certificate, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall charge the Registered Owner of such 
Certificate with all legal, printing, and other expenses in connection therewith.  Every 
replacement Certificate issued pursuant to the provisions of this Section by virtue of the fact that 
any Certificate is lost, stolen or destroyed shall constitute a contractual obligation of the City 
whether or not the lost, stolen or destroyed Certificate shall be found at any time, or be 
enforceable by anyone, and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Ordinance equally and 
proportionately with any and all other Certificates duly issued under this Ordinance. 
 
 (e)  Authority for Issuing Replacement Certificates.  In accordance with Subchapter B 
of Chapter 1206, Texas Government Code, this Section 9 of this Ordinance shall constitute 
authority for the issuance of any such replacement Certificate without necessity of further action 
by the governing body of the City or any other body or person, and the duty of the replacement 
of such Certificate is hereby authorized and imposed upon the Paying Agent/Registrar, and the 
Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver such Certificate in the form and manner 
and with the effect, as provided in Section 4(a) of this Ordinance for the Certificates issued in 
conversion and exchange for other Certificates. 
 
 Section 10.  CUSTODY, APPROVAL, AND REGISTRATION OF THE 
CERTIFICATE; BOND COUNSEL'S OPINION; CUSIP NUMBERS AND 
CONTINGENT INSURANCE PROVISION, IF OBTAINED.  The Mayor of the City 
Council of the City is hereby authorized to have control of the Certificate initially issued and 
delivered hereunder and all necessary records and proceedings pertaining to the Certificate 
pending their delivery and their investigation, examination, and approval by the Attorney 
General of the State of Texas, and their registration by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the 
State of Texas.  Upon registration of the Certificate said Comptroller of Public Accounts (or a 
deputy designated in writing to act for said Comptroller) shall manually sign the Comptroller's 
Registration Certificate attached to such Certificate, and the seal of said Comptroller shall be 
impressed, or placed in facsimile, on such Certificate.  The approving legal opinion of the City's 
Bond Counsel and the assigned CUSIP numbers, if any, may, at the option of the City, be printed 
on the Certificate issued and delivered under this Ordinance, but neither shall have any legal 
effect, and shall be solely for the convenience and information of the Registered Owners of the 



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

18 

Certificate.  In addition, if bond insurance is obtained, the Certificate may bear an appropriate 
legend as provided by the insurer. 
 
 Section 11.  COVENANTS REGARDING TAX EXEMPTION OF INTEREST ON 
THE CERTIFICATES. (a) Covenants.  The City covenants to take any action necessary to 
assure, or refrain from any action which would adversely affect, the treatment of the Certificates 
as obligations described in section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the 
"Code"), the interest on which is not includable in the "gross income" of the holder for purposes 
of federal income taxation.  In furtherance thereof, the City covenants as follows: 
 

(1)  to take any action to assure that no more than 10 percent of the proceeds of the 
Certificates or the projects financed therewith (less amounts deposited to a reserve fund, 
if any) are used for any "private business use," as defined in section 141(b)(6) of the 
Code or, if more than 10 percent of the proceeds of the Certificates or the projects 
financed therewith are so used, such amounts, whether or not received by the City, with 
respect to such private business use, do not, under the terms of this Ordinance or any 
underlying arrangement, directly or indirectly, secure or provide for the payment of more 
than 10 percent of the debt service on the Certificates, in contravention of section 
141(b)(2) of the Code; 

 
 (3)  to take any action to assure that in the event that the "private business use" 
described in subsection (1) hereof exceeds 5 percent of the proceeds of the Certificates or 
the projects financed therewith (less amounts deposited into a reserve fund, if any) then 
the amount in excess of 5 percent is used for a "private business use" which is "related" 
and not "disproportionate," within the meaning of section 141(b)(3) of the Code, to the 
governmental use; 

 
 (4)  to take any action to assure that no amount which is greater than the lesser of 
$5,000,000, or 5 percent of the proceeds of the Certificates (less amounts deposited into a 
reserve fund, if any) is directly or indirectly used to finance loans to persons, other than 
state or local governmental units, in contravention of section 141(c) of the Code; 

 
 (5)  to refrain from taking any action which would otherwise result in the 
Certificates being treated as "private activity bonds" within the meaning of section 141(b) 
of the Code; 

 
 (6)  to refrain from taking any action that would result in the Certificates being 
"federally guaranteed" within the meaning of section 149(b) of the Code; 

 
 (7)  to refrain from using any portion of the proceeds of the Certificates, directly 
or indirectly, to acquire or to replace funds which were used, directly or indirectly, to 
acquire investment property (as defined in section 148(b)(2) of the Code) which produces 
a materially higher yield over the term of the Certificates, other than investment property 
acquired with -- 

 



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

19 

 (A)  proceeds of the Certificates invested for a reasonable temporary 
period of 3 years or less or, in the case of a refunding bond, for a period of 90 
days, 

 
 (B)  amounts invested in a bona fide debt service fund, within the 
meaning of section l.148-1(b) of the Treasury Regulations, and 

 
 (C)  amounts deposited in any reasonably required reserve or replacement 
fund to the extent such amounts do not exceed 10 percent of the proceeds of the 
Certificates; 

 
 (8)  to otherwise restrict the use of the proceeds of the Certificates or amounts 
treated as proceeds of the Certificates, as may be necessary, so that the Certificates do not 
otherwise contravene the requirements of section 148 of the Code (relating to arbitrage) 
and, to the extent applicable, section 149(d) of the Code (relating to advance refundings); 

 
 (9)  to pay to the United States of America at least once during each five-year 
period (beginning on the date of delivery of the Certificates) an amount that is at least 
equal to 90 percent of the "Excess Earnings," within the meaning of section 148(f) of the 
Code and to pay to the United States of America, not later than 60 days after the 
Certificates have been paid in full, 100 percent of the amount then required to be paid as 
a result of Excess Earnings under section 148(f) of the Code; and 

 
(10) to assure that the proceeds of the Certificates will be used solely for new money 
projects. 

 
 (b) Rebate Fund.  In order to facilitate compliance with the above covenant (8), a 
"Rebate Fund" is hereby established by the City for the sole benefit of the United States of 
America, and such fund shall not be subject to the claim of any other person, including without 
limitation the bondholders.  The Rebate Fund is established for the additional purpose of 
compliance with section 148 of the Code. 
 
 (c) Proceeds.  The City understands that the term "proceeds" includes "disposition 
proceeds" as defined in the Treasury Regulations and, in the case of refunding bonds, transferred 
proceeds (if any) [and] proceeds of the refunded bonds expended prior to the date of issuance of 
the Certificates.  It is the understanding of the City that the covenants contained herein are 
intended to assure compliance with the Code and any regulations or rulings promulgated by the 
U.S. Department of the Treasury pursuant thereto.  In the event that regulations or rulings are 
hereafter promulgated which modify or expand provisions of the Code, as applicable to the 
Certificates, the City will not be required to comply with any covenant contained herein to the 
extent that such failure to comply, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, will not 
adversely affect the exemption from federal income taxation of interest on the Certificates under 
section 103 of the Code.  In the event that regulations or rulings are hereafter promulgated 
which impose additional requirements which are applicable to the Certificates, the City agrees to 
comply with the additional requirements to the extent necessary, in the opinion of nationally 
recognized bond counsel, to preserve the exemption from federal income taxation of interest on 
the Certificates under section 103 of the Code.  In furtherance of such intention, the City hereby 



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

20 

authorizes and directs the City Manager or Director of Finance to execute any documents, 
certificates or reports required by the Code and to make such elections, on behalf of the City, 
which may be permitted by the Code as are consistent with the purpose for the issuance of the 
Certificates.  This Ordinance is intended to satisfy the official intent requirements set forth in 
Section 1.150-2 of the Treasury Regulations. 
 
 (d)  Allocation Of, and Limitation On, Expenditures for the Project.  The City covenants 
to account for the expenditure of sale proceeds and investment earnings to be used for the 
purposes described in Section 1 of this Ordinance (the "Project") on its books and records in 
accordance with the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code.  The City recognizes that in 
order for proceeds to be expended under the Internal Revenue Code, the sale proceeds or 
investment earnings must be expended no more than 60 days after the earlier of (1) the fifth 
anniversary of the delivery of the Certificates, or (2) the date the Certificates are retired. The City 
agrees to obtain the advice of nationally-recognized bond counsel if such expenditure fails to 
comply with the foregoing to assure that such expenditure will not adversely affect the 
tax-exempt status of the Certificates.  For purposes hereof, the City shall not be obligated to 
comply with this covenant if it obtains an opinion that such failure to comply will not adversely 
affect the excludability for federal income tax purposes from gross income of the interest.  
 
 (e)  Disposition of Project.  The City covenants that the property constituting the 
projects financed with the proceeds of the Certificates will not be sold or otherwise disposed in a 
transaction resulting in the receipt by the City of cash or other compensation, unless the City 
obtains an opinion of nationally-recognized bond counsel that such sale or other disposition will 
not adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the Certificates.  For purposes of the foregoing, the 
portion of the property comprising personal property and disposed in the ordinary course shall 
not be treated as a transaction resulting in the receipt of cash or other compensation.  For 
purposes hereof, the City shall not be obligated to comply with this covenant if it obtains an 
opinion that such failure to comply will not adversely affect the excludability for federal income 
tax purposes from gross income of the interest. 
 
 (f) Designation as Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations.  The City hereby designates 
the Certificates as a "qualified tax-exempt obligation" as defined in section 265(b)(3) of the 
Code.  In furtherance of such designation, the City represents, covenants and warrants the 
following: (a) that during the calendar year in which the Certificates is issued, the City (including 
any subordinate entities) has not designated nor will designate obligations, which when 
aggregated with the Certificates, will result in more than $10,000,000 of "qualified tax-exempt 
obligations" being issued; (b) that the City reasonably anticipates that the amount of tax-exempt 
obligations issued, during the calendar year in which the Certificates is issued, by the City (or 
any subordinate entities) will not exceed $10,000,000; and, (c) that the City will take such action 
or refrain from such action as necessary, and as more particularly set forth in this Section, in 
order that the Certificates will not be considered a "private activity bond" within the meaning of 
section 141 of the Code. 
 
 (g)  Written Procedures.  Unless superseded by another action of the City, to ensure 
compliance with the covenants contained herein regarding private business use, remedial actions, 
arbitrage and rebate, the City hereby adopts and establishes the instructions attached hereto as 



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

21 

Exhibit "A" as their written procedures for the Certificates and any other tax-exempt debt or 
obligation outstanding or hereafter issued. 
 
 Section 12.  SALE OF CERTIFICATES.  The Certificates are hereby sold to the 
bidder whose bid produced the lowest net effective interest rate, pursuant to the taking of public 
bids therefor, on this date, and shall be delivered to _______________ (the "Purchaser") at a 
price of $__________, representing the par amount of the Certificates, plus a premium of 
$___________, less compensation to the Purchaser of $__________.  The Certificates shall 
initially be registered in the name of CEDE & Co.  
 
 Section 13.  DEFAULT AND REMEDIES. 
 
 (a)  Events of Default.  Each of the following occurrences or events for the purpose of 
this Ordinance is hereby declared to be an Event of Default:  (i)  the failure to make payment of 
the principal of or interest on any of the Certificates when the same becomes due and payable; or 
(ii)  default in the performance or observance of any other covenant, agreement or obligation of 
the City, the failure to perform which materially, adversely affects the rights of the Registered 
Owners of the Certificates, and the continuation thereof for a period of 60 days after notice of 
such default is given by any Registered Owner to the City. 
 
 (b)  Remedies for Default.  (i)  Upon the happening of any Event of Default, then and 
in every case, any Registered Owner or an authorized representative thereof, including, but not 
limited to, a trustee or trustees therefor, may proceed against the City, or any official, officer or 
employee of the City in their official capacity, for the purpose of protecting and enforcing the 
rights of the Registered Owners under this Ordinance, by mandamus or other suit, action or 
special proceeding in equity or at law, in any court of competent jurisdiction, for any relief 
permitted by law, including the specific performance of any covenant or agreement contained 
herein, or thereby to enjoin any act or thing that may be unlawful or in violation of any right of 
the Registered Owners hereunder or any combination of such remedies; (ii)  It is provided that 
all such proceedings shall be instituted and maintained for the equal benefit of all Registered 
Owners of Certificates then outstanding. 
 
 (c)  Remedies Not Exclusive.  (i)  No remedy herein conferred or reserved is intended 
to be exclusive of any other available remedy or remedies, but each and every such remedy shall 
be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or under the 
Certificates or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity; provided, however, that 
notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance, the right to accelerate the debt evidenced 
by the Certificates shall not be available as a remedy under this Ordinance.  (ii)  The exercise of 
any remedy herein conferred or reserved shall not be deemed a waiver of any other available 
remedy.  (iii)  By accepting the delivery of a Certificate authorized under this Ordinance, such 
Registered Owner agrees that the certifications required to effectuate any covenants or 
representations contained in this Ordinance do not and shall never constitute or give rise to a 
personal or pecuniary liability or charge against the officers, employees or trustees of the City or 
the City Council.  (iv)  None of the members of the City Council, nor any other official or 
officer, agent, or employee of the City, shall be charged personally by the Registered Owners 
with any liability, or be held personally liable to the Registered Owners under any term or 



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

22 

provision of this Ordinance, or because of any Event of Default or alleged Event of Default 
under this Ordinance. 
 
 Section 14. ESTABLISHMENT OF CONSTRUCTION FUND AND INTEREST 
EARNINGS.  (a)  Construction Fund.  A special fund or account, to be designated the City of 
Burnet Series 2021 Certificate of Obligation Construction Fund (the "2021 Construction Fund") 
is hereby created and shall be established and maintained by the City at a depository bank of the 
City.  The 2021 Construction Fund shall be kept separate and apart from all other funds and 
accounts of the City.  The Construction Fund and the Interest and Sinking Fund shall be 
invested in accordance with the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government 
Code, as amended, and the City's Investment Policy. 
 
 (b)  Interest Earnings.  Interest earnings derived from the investment of proceeds from 
the sale of the Certificates shall be used along with the Certificate proceeds for the purpose for 
which the Certificates are issued as set forth in Section 1 hereof or to pay principal or interest 
payments on the Certificates; provided that after completion of such purpose, if any of such 
interest earnings remain on hand, such interest earnings shall be deposited in the Interest and 
Sinking Fund.  It is further provided, however, that any interest earnings on bond proceeds 
which are required to be rebated to the United States of America pursuant to Section 11 hereof in 
order to prevent the Certificates from being arbitrage bonds shall be so rebated and not 
considered as interest earnings for the purposes of this Section. 
 
 Section 15. APPROVAL OF OFFICIAL STATEMENT.  The City hereby approves 
the form and content of the Official Statement relating to the Certificates and any addenda, 
supplement or amendment thereto, and approves the distribution of such Official Statement in 
the reoffering of the Certificates by the Purchaser in final form, with such changes therein or 
additions thereto as the officer executing the same may deem advisable, such determination to be 
conclusively evidenced by his execution thereof.  The distribution and use of the Preliminary 
Official Statement dated July 19, 2021 prior to the date hereof is confirmed, approved and 
ratified.  The City Council hereby finds and determines that the Preliminary Official Statement 
and final Official Statement were "deemed final" (as that term is defined in 17 CFR Section 
240.15c(2)-12) as of their respective dates. 
 
 Section 16. APPROVAL OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT.  
Attached hereto as Exhibit "B" is a substantially final form of the Paying Agent/Registrar 
Agreement with an attached Blanket Issuer Letter of Representation.  The Mayor of the City 
Council of the City is hereby authorized to amend, complete or modify such agreement as 
necessary and is further authorized to execute such agreement and the City Secretary is hereby 
authorized to attest such agreement. 
 
 Section 17.  CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING.  (a)  Annual 
Reports. The City shall provide annually to the MSRB, in an electronic format as prescribed by 
the MSRB, (i) within six months after the end of each fiscal year of the City ending in or after 
2021, financial information and operating data, which information and data may be unaudited, 
with respect to the City of the general type included in the final Official Statement authorized by 
Section 15 of this Ordinance, being the information described in Exhibit "C" hereto and (ii) if not 



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

23 

provided as part of such financial information and operating data, audited financial statements of 
the City, within twelve months after the end of each fiscal year of the City ending in or after 
2021.  Any financial statements to be so provided shall be (1) prepared in accordance with the 
accounting principles described in Exhibit "A" hereto, or such other accounting principles as the 
City may be required to employ from time to time pursuant to state law or regulation, and 
(2) audited, if the City commissions an audit of such statements and the audit is completed 
within the period during which they must be provided.  If the audit of such financial statements 
is not complete within such period, then the City shall provide unaudited financial statements 
within such period, and audited financial statements for the applicable fiscal year to the MSRB, 
when and if the audit report on such statements become available. 
 
 If the City changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and of the date 
of the new fiscal year end) prior to the next date by which the City otherwise would be required 
to provide financial information and operating data pursuant to this Section. 
 
 The financial information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this Section may 
be set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included by specific reference to any 
document  
that is available to the public on the MSRB's internet web site or filed with the SEC. All 
documents provided to the MSRB pursuant to this Section shall be accompanied by identifying 
information as prescribed by the MSRB. 
 
 (b) Event Notices .  The City shall notify the MSRB, in an electronic format as 

prescribed by the MSRB, in a timely manner not in excess of ten business days 
after the occurrence of the event, of any of the following events with respect to 
the Certificates: 

 
A. Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

 
B. Non-payment related defaults, if material within the meaning of the federal 

securities laws; 
 

C. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 
 

D. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 
 

E. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 
 

F. Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed 
or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 
5701–TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the 
tax status of the Certificates, or other events affecting the tax status of the 
Certificates 

 
G. Modifications to rights of holders of the Certificates, if material within the 

meaning of the federal securities laws; 
 



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

24 

H. Certificate calls, if material within the meaning of the federal securities laws; 
 

I. Defeasances; 
 

J. Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Certificates, if 
material within the meaning of the federal securities laws; 

 
K. Rating changes; 

 
L. Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the City; 

 
M. The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the 

City or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the City, other 
than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive 
agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive 
agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if 
material within the meaning of the federal securities laws; and 

 
N. Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of 

a trustee, if material within the meaning of the federal securities laws. 
 

O. Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the City, if material, or agreement 
to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar 
terms of a Financial Obligation of the City, any of which affect security 
holders, if material; and 

                                
P. Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or 

other similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the City, 
any of which reflect financial difficulties. 

 
 "Financial Obligation" means a (a) debt obligation; (b) derivative instrument entered into 
in connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt 
obligation; or (c) guarantee of a debt obligation or any such derivative instrument; provided that 
“financial obligation” shall not include municipal securities as to which a final official statement 
(as defined in the Rule) has been provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule. 
  
 The City shall notify the MSRB, in an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB, in a 
timely manner, of any failure by the City to provide financial information or operating data in 
accordance with subsection (a) of this Section by the time required by such subsection. All 
documents provided to the MSRB pursuant to this Section shall be accompanied by identifying 
information as prescribed by the MSRB. 
 
 (c) Limitations, Disclaimers, and Amendments .  The City shall be obligated to 
observe and perform the covenants specified in this Section for so long as, but only for so long 
as, the City remains an "obligated person" with respect to the Certificates within the meaning of 
the Rule, except that the City in any event will give notice of any deposit made in accordance 
with Section 12.02 of this Ordinance that causes the Certificates no longer to be outstanding.   



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

25 

 
 The provisions of this Section are for the sole benefit of the holders and beneficial 
owners of the Certificates, and nothing in this Section, express or implied, shall give any benefit 
or any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person.  The City 
undertakes to provide only the financial information, operating data, financial statements, and 
notices which it has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this Section and does not hereby 
undertake to provide any other information that may be relevant or material to a complete 
presentation of the City's financial results, condition, or prospects or hereby undertake to update 
any information provided in accordance with this Section or otherwise, except as expressly 
provided herein.  The City does not make any representation or warranty concerning such 
information or its usefulness to a decision to invest in or sell Certificates at any future date. 
 
 UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE CITY BE LIABLE TO THE HOLDER 
OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY CERTIFICATE OR ANY OTHER PERSON, IN 
CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM 
ANY BREACH BY THE CITY, WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT FAULT ON ITS 
PART, OF ANY COVENANT SPECIFIED IN THIS SECTION, BUT EVERY RIGHT AND 
REMEDY OF ANY SUCH PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON ACCOUNT 
OF ANY SUCH BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR MANDAMUS OR 
SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE. 
 
 No default by the City in observing or performing its obligations under this Section shall 
comprise a breach of or default under this Ordinance for purposes of any other provision of this 
Ordinance. 
 
 Should the Rule be amended to obligate the City to make filings with or provide notices 
to entities other than the MSRB, the City hereby agrees to undertake such obligation with respect 
to the Certificates in accordance with the Rule as amended. 
 
 Nothing in this Section is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise limit the 
duties of the City under federal and state securities laws. 
 
 The provisions of this Section may be amended by the City from time to time to adapt to 
changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in law, or a 
change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the City, but only if (1) the 
provisions of this Section, as so amended, would have permitted an underwriter to purchase or 
sell Certificates in the primary offering of the Certificates in compliance with the Rule, taking 
into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule since such offering as well as such 
changed circumstances and (2) either (a) the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount 
(or any greater amount required by any other provision of this Ordinance that authorizes such an 
amendment) of the outstanding Certificates consents to such amendment or (b) a person that is 
unaffiliated with the City (such as nationally recognized bond counsel) determines that such 
amendment will not materially impair the interest of the holders and beneficial owners of the 
Certificates.  If the City so amends the provisions of this Section, it shall include with any 
amended financial information or operating data next provided in accordance with paragraph (a) 
of this Section an explanation, in narrative form, of the reason for the amendment and of the 
impact of any change in the type of financial information or operating data so provided.  The 



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

26 

City may also amend or repeal the provisions of this continuing disclosure agreement  if the 
SEC amends or repeals the applicable provision of the Rule or a court of final jurisdiction enters 
judgment that such provisions of the Rule are invalid, but only if and to the extent that the 
provisions of this sentence would not prevent an underwriter from lawfully purchasing or selling 
Certificates in the primary offering of the Certificates. 
 
 Section 19.  NO RECOURSE AGAINST CITY OFFICIALS.  No recourse shall be 
had for the payment of principal of or interest on the Certificates or for any claim based thereon 
or on this Ordinance against any official of the City or any person executing any Certificates. 
 
 Section 20.  FURTHER ACTIONS.  The officers and employees of the City are 
hereby authorized, empowered and directed from time to time and at any time to do and perform 
all such acts and things and to execute, acknowledge and deliver in the name and under the 
corporate seal and on behalf of the City all such instruments, whether or not herein mentioned, as 
may be necessary or desirable in order to carry out the terms and provisions of this Ordinance, 
the Certificates, the initial sale and delivery of the Certificates, the Paying Agent/Registrar 
Agreement, and any insurance commitment letter or insurance policy.  In addition, prior to the 
initial delivery of the Certificates, the Mayor, the City Secretary, the City Manager or Assistant 
City Manager, the City Attorney and Bond Counsel are hereby authorized and directed to 
approve any technical changes or corrections to this Ordinance or to any of the instruments 
authorized and approved by this Ordinance necessary in order to (i) correct any ambiguity or 
mistake or properly or more completely document the transactions contemplated and approved 
by this Ordinance and as described in the Official Statement, (ii) obtain a rating from any of the 
national bond rating agencies or satisfy requirements of any bond insurer, or (iii) obtain the 
approval of the Certificates by the Attorney General's office. 
 
 In case any officer of the City whose signature shall appear on any Certificate shall cease 
to be such officer before the delivery of such Certificate, such signature shall nevertheless be 
valid and sufficient for all  purposes the same as if such officer had remained in office until such 
delivery. 
 
 Section 21.  INTERPRETATIONS.  All terms defined herein and all pronouns used in 
this Ordinance shall be deemed to apply equally to singular and plural and to all genders.  The 
titles and headings of the articles and sections of this Ordinance have been inserted for 
convenience of reference only and are not to be considered a part hereof and shall not in any way 
modify or restrict any of the terms or provisions hereof.  This Ordinance and all the terms and 
provisions hereof shall be liberally construed to effectuate the purposes set forth herein and to 
sustain the validity of the Certificates and the validity of the lien on and pledge to secure the 
payment of the Certificates. 
 
 Section 22.  INCONSISTENT PROVISIONS.  All ordinances, orders or resolutions, 
or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any provisions of this Ordinance are 
hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict and the provisions of this Ordinance shall be and 
remain controlling as to the matters contained herein. 
 



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

27 

 Section 23.  INTERESTED PARTIES.  Nothing in this Ordinance expressed or 
implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon, or to give to, any person or entity, other 
than the City and the Registered Owners of the Certificates, any right, remedy or claim under or 
by reason of this Ordinance or any covenant, condition or stipulation hereof, and all covenants, 
stipulations, promises and agreements in this Ordinance contained by and on behalf of the City 
shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the City and the registered owners of the 
Certificates. 
 
 Section 24.  INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.  The City hereby finds that the 
statements set forth in the recitals of this Ordinance are true and correct, and the City hereby 
incorporates such recitals as a part of this Ordinance. 
 
 Section 25.  REPEALER.  All orders, resolutions and ordinances, or parts thereof, 
inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistency. 
 
 Section 26.  SEVERABILITY.   The provisions of this Ordinance are severable; and 
in case any one or more of the provisions of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any 
person or circumstance should be held to be invalid, unconstitutional, or ineffective as to any 
person or circumstance, the remainder of this Ordinance nevertheless shall be valid, and the 
application of any such invalid provision to persons or circumstances other than those as to 
which it is held invalid shall not be affected thereby. 
 
 Section 27.  PERFECTION.  Chapter 1208, Government Code, applies to the issuance 
of the Certificates and the pledge of ad valorem taxes and revenues granted by the City under 
Sections 6 and 7 of this Ordinance, and such pledge is therefore valid, effective and perfected.  
If Texas law is amended at any time while the Certificates are outstanding and unpaid such that 
the pledge of ad valorem taxes and revenues granted by the City under Sections 6 and 7 of this 
Ordinance is to be subject to the filing requirements of Chapter 9, Business & Commerce Code, 
then in order to preserve to the registered owners of the Certificates the perfection of the security 
interest in said pledge, the City agrees to take such measures as it determines are reasonable and 
necessary under Texas law to comply with the applicable provisions of Chapter 9, Business & 
Commerce Code and enable a filing to perfect the security interest in said pledge to occur. 
 
 Section 28.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Ordinance shall become effect immediately 
from and after its passage on first and final reading in accordance with Section 1201.028, Texas 
Government Code, as amended. 
 
 Section 29. NO PERSONAL LIABILITY.  No covenant or agreement contained in the 
Certificates, this Ordinance or any corollary instrument shall be deemed to be the covenant or 
agreement of any member of the City Council or any officer, agent, employee or representative 
of the City Council in his individual capacity, and neither the directors, officers, agents, 
employees or representatives of the City Council nor any person executing the Certificates shall 
be personally liable thereon or be subject to any personal liability for damages or otherwise or 
accountability by reason of the issuance thereof, or any actions taken or duties performed, 
whether by virtue of any constitution, statute or rule of law, or by the enforcement of any 



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

28 

assessment or penalty, or otherwise, all such liability being expressly released and waived as a 
condition of and in consideration for the issuance of the Certificates. 
 
 Section 30.  CUSTODY, APPROVAL, AND REGISTRATION OF 
CERTIFICATE; BOND COUNSEL'S OPINION; AND CONTINGENT INSURANCE 
PROVISION, IF OBTAINED.  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized to have control of 
the Certificate initially issued and delivered hereunder and all necessary records and proceedings 
pertaining to the Certificate pending its delivery and their investigation, examination, and 
approval by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and their registration by the Comptroller 
of Public Accounts of the State of Texas.  Upon registration of the Certificate said Comptroller 
of Public Accounts (or a deputy designated in writing to act for said Comptroller) shall manually 
sign the Comptroller's Registration Certificate attached to such Certificate, and the seal of said 
Comptroller shall be impressed, or placed in facsimile, on such Certificate.  The approving legal 
opinion of the City's Bond Counsel, at the option of the City, be printed on the Certificate issued 
and delivered under this Ordinance, but neither shall have any legal effect, and shall be solely for 
the convenience and information of the Registered Owner of the Certificate.  In addition, if bond 
insurance is obtained, the Certificate may bear an appropriate legend as provided by the insurer. 
 



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

29 

 IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 1201.028, Texas Government Code, passed and 
approved on the final reading on the 27th day of July, 2021. 
 
     
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Mayor, City of Burnet, Texas 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Secretary, City of Burnet, Texas 



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

A-1 

EXHIBIT "A" 
       

WRITTEN PROCEDURES RELATING TO CONTINUING 
COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL TAX COVENANTS 

 
 A. Arbitrage.  With respect to the investment and expenditure of the proceeds of the 
Bonds, Notes, Certificates, Leases or other Obligations now or hereafter outstanding as having 
the interest on such debt exempt from Federal income taxes of the debt holder (the 
"Obligations") the Issuer's City Manager or Director of Finance (the "Responsible Person") will, 
as applicable to each issuance of Obligations: 
 

• instruct the appropriate person or persons that the construction, renovation or 
acquisition of the facilities must proceed with due diligence and that binding 
contracts for the expenditure of at least 5% of the proceeds of the Obligations will 
be entered into within 6 months of the Issue Date;  

• monitor that at least 85% of the proceeds of the Obligations to be used for the 
construction, renovation or acquisition of any facilities are expended within 3 
years of the date of delivery of the Obligations ("Issue Date"); 

• restrict the yield of the investments to the yield on the Obligations after 3 years of 
the Issue Date; 

• monitor all amounts deposited into a sinking fund or funds, e.g., the Debt Service 
Fund/Bond Fund/Interest and Sinking Fund, to assure that the maximum amount 
invested at a yield higher than the yield on the Obligations does not exceed an 
amount equal to the debt service on the Obligations in the succeeding 12-month 
period plus a carryover amount equal to one-twelfth of the principal and interest 
payable on the Obligations for the immediately preceding 12-month period; 

• ensure that no more than 50% of the proceeds of the Obligations are invested in 
an investment with a guaranteed yield for 4 years or more; 

• assure that the maximum amount of any reserve fund for any Obligations invested 
at a yield higher than the yield on the Obligations will not exceed the lesser of (1) 
10% of the principal amount of the Obligations, (2) 125% of the average annual 
debt service on the Obligations measured as of the Issue Date, or (3) 100% of the 
maximum annual debt service on the Obligations as of the Issue Date; 

• monitor the actions of the escrow agent (to the extent an escrow is funded with 
proceeds) to ensure compliance with the applicable provisions of the escrow 
agreement, including with respect to reinvestment of cash balances; 

• maintain any official action of the Issuer (such as a reimbursement resolution) 
stating its intent to reimburse with the proceeds of the Obligations any amount 
expended prior to the Issue Date for the acquisition, renovation or construction of 
the facilities; 

• ensure that the applicable information return (e.g., IRS Form 8038-G, 8038-GC, 
or any successor forms) is timely filed with the IRS;   

• assure that, unless excepted from rebate and yield restriction under section 148(f) 
of the Code, excess investment earnings are computed and paid to the U.S. 
government at such time and in such manner as directed by the IRS (i) at least 



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

A-2 

every 5 years after the Issue Date and (ii) within 30 days after the date the 
Obligations are retired. 

 
 B. Private Business Use.  With respect to the use of the facilities financed or 
refinanced with the proceeds of the Certificates the Responsible Person will:  
  
• monitor the date on which the facilities are substantially complete and available to 

be used for the purpose intended; 
• monitor whether, at any time the Obligations are outstanding, any person, other 

than the Issuer, the employees of the Issuer, the agents of the Issuer or members 
of the general public has any contractual right (such as a lease, purchase, 
management or other service agreement) with respect to any portion of the 
facilities;  

• monitor whether, at any time the Obligations are outstanding, any person, other 
than the Issuer, the employees of the Issuer, the agents of the Issuer or members 
of the general public has a right to use the output of the facilities (e.g., water, gas, 
electricity); 

• monitor whether, at any time the Obligations are outstanding, any person, other 
than the Issuer, the employees of the Issuer, the agents of the Issuer or members 
of the general public has a right to use the facilities to conduct or to direct the 
conduct of research;  

• determine whether, at any time the Obligations are outstanding, any person, other 
than the Issuer, has a naming right for the facilities or any other contractual right 
granting an intangible benefit; 

• determine whether, at any time the Obligations are outstanding, the facilities are 
sold or otherwise disposed of;  and 

• take such action as is necessary to remediate any failure to maintain compliance 
with the covenants contained in the Order related to the public use of the 
facilities. 

 
 C. Record Retention.  The Responsible Persons will maintain or cause to be 
maintained all records relating to the investment and expenditure of the proceeds of the 
Obligations and the use of the facilities financed or refinanced thereby for a period ending three 
(3) years after the complete extinguishment of the Obligations.  If any portion of the Obligations 
is refunded with the proceeds of another series of tax-exempt obligations, such records shall be 
maintained until the three (3) years after the refunding obligations are completely extinguished.  
Such records can be maintained in paper or electronic format.   

D.         Responsible Persons.  Each Responsible Person shall receive appropriate 
training regarding the Issuer's accounting system, contract intake system, facilities management 
and other systems necessary to track the investment and expenditure of the proceeds and the use 
of the facilities financed with the proceeds of the Obligations.  The foregoing notwithstanding, 
the Responsible Persons are authorized and instructed to retain such experienced advisors and 
agents as may be necessary to carry out the purposes of these instructions. 



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

C-1

EXHIBIT "B" 
 

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   



 
BURNET\CTRCO2021:  Ordinance 

D-1 

EXHIBIT "C" 
 

DESCRIPTION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
 The following information is referred to in Section 17 of this Ordinance. 
 
Annual Financial Statements and Operating Data 
 
 The financial information and operating data with respect to the City to be provided 

annually in accordance with such Section are as specified (and included in the Appendix or 
under the headings of the Official Statement referred to) below: 

 
  (1) Appendix B - Excerpts from the City's Annual Financial Report 
 
Accounting Principles 
 
 The accounting principles referred to in such Section are the accounting principles 

described in the notes to the financial statements referred to in the paragraph above. 



 
 

 
City Secretary 

 
 

 

ITEM 4.3 
 
 
Kelly Dix 
City Secretary 
512-715-3209 
kdix@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 

Meeting Date:  July 27, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action:  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS, PROVIDING 
FOR THE SUBMISSION OF NOMINATIONS FOR THE 
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS OF THE BURNET CENTRAL 
APPRAISAL DISTRICT FOR THE YEARS 2022-2023; AND 
PROVIDING FOR OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSES: K. Dix    

 
Background: The terms of all five members of the board of directors of the 

Burnet Central Appraisal will expire December 2021.  Each 
voting unit may nominate one candidate, for each of the five 
positions to be filled, by written resolution on or before 
October 15, 2021.    

 
Information: Current serving members are: 

o Gene Broadway 
o Dave Kithil 
o Bruce Jones 
o Philip Thurman 
o Darlene Oostermeyer 

 
Fiscal Impact: None at this time.   
 
Recommendation:  Approve Resolution R2021-39 providing submissions of 

nominations for the election of directors to the Burnet Central 
Appraisal District for the 2022-2023 term. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO:  R2021-39 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS, 
PROVIDING FOR THE SUBMISSION OF NOMINATIONS FOR THE 
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS OF THE BURNET CENTRAL APPRAISAL 
DISTRICT FOR THE YEARS 2022-2023; AND PROVIDING FOR OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSES.    
 
WHEREAS, SB621, Section 6.03 (h) allows that each taxing unit entitled to vote, 

nominate by resolution and to submit to the Chief Appraiser of the Burnet Central 
Appraisal District by October 15, 2021.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BURNET, TEXAS, THAT: 

 
Section 1.   Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct 

and are hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as 
findings of fact.     

 
Section 2.   Proceedings.  The City Council of the City of Burnet submits the attached 

list of nominees, for candidates for election of the Board of Directors for Burnet Central 
Appraisal District to serve from January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2023. 

 
Section 3.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting 

at which this resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice 
of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings 
Act, Chapt. 551, Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 27th day of July, 2021. 
 
 
      CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS 
 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
    Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor 
ATTEST:       
 
 
 
_______________________________                                                         
Kelly Dix, City Secretary  



BURNET CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT 
Board of Directors Nomination Form   

For the 2022-2023 Term 
 
Submitted by: 
City of Burnet 
P.O. Box 1369 
Burnet TX 78611 
 
The City of Burnet has nominated by Resolution (here attached) the 
following persons(s) for consideration to serve on the Board of Directors of 
the Burnet Central Appraisal District. 
1.  3. 
Gene Broadway  Bruce Jones 
      name       name 
   
      address        address 
   
      city, state, zip        city, state, zip 
   
      phone        phone 
830-613-0277  832-283-3233 

2.  4. 
Dave Kithil  Philip Thurman 
      name       name 
          
      address        address 
   
      city, state, zip        city, state, zip 
   
      phone        phone 
830-265-0678  512-656-9957 

  5. 
  Darlene Oostermeyer 
       name 
          
        address 
   
        city, state, zip 
   
        phone 
  830-693-7025 

Authorizing Signature   
 

 





 

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF BURNET 

                      This Agreement is entered into this the 1st day of October, 2021 and shall remain in effect 
until September 30, 2022 by and between the CITY OF BURNET AND COMMISSIONERS’ COURT and 
SHERIFF Burnet County, Texas as follows: 

                     WHEREAS, the CITY OF BURNET operates a municipal police department and BURNET 
COUNTY Sheriff’s Department operates a radio law enforcement dispatch system, and; 

                     WHEREAS, the jurisdiction of the CITY and the COUNTY law enforcement, overlap, and; 

                     WHEREAS, the mutual interest of both law enforcement, fire/EMS, units could best be 
served by the cooperative use of one radio law enforcement dispatch unit and; 

                   WHEREAS, the CITY COUNCIL of the CITY OF BURNET and the COMMISSIONERS’ COURT of 
BURNET COUNTY have ratified this Agreement and approved its provisions; 

                   It is therefore agreed that the CITY OF BURNET, in order to partially defray the expense of the 
operation of a radio law enforcement dispatch unit, shall pay to BURNET COUNTY the cash sum of 
$107,422.00 (One Hundred Seven Thousand Four Hundred Twenty Two and 00/100) annually. Payment 
will be due on the first day of each month, beginning October 1, 2021 as follows: Eleven monthly 
installments in the amount of $8,951.83 (Eight Thousand Nine Hundred Fifty One and 83/100), and one 
installment of $8,951.87 (Eight Thousand Nine Hundred Fifty One and 87/100). 

In consideration of the said payment to BURNET COUNTY, the CITY OF BURNET and the City of 
BURNET POLICE DEPARTMENT, CITY OF BURNET FIRE DEPARTMENT AND CITY OF BURNET PUBLIC 
WORKS DEPARTMENT shall receive the benefit of full time (24 hours per day) radio law enforcement 
dispatching services operated by and under the control of the BURNET COUNTY SHERIFF’S 
DEPARTMENT. 

This agreement is executed on _______day of __________________ 2021, effective date as set forth 
above. 

___________________________                                              _________________________ 
CRISTA GOBLE BROMLEY, MAYOR                                                JAMES OAKLEY, COUNTY JUDGE 
CITY OF BURNET                                                                               BURNET COUNTY  
P.O. BOX 1369                                              
BURNET, TEXAS 78611 
 
 
____________________________                                           ___________________________ 
CHIEF OF POLICE                                                                     CALVIN BOYD 
CITY OF BURNET                                                    BURNET COUNTY SHERIFF              



 
 

 
Police Department 

 

 
ITEM 4.4 
 
Brian Lee 
Police Chief 
512 756-6404 
blee@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 

 
Meeting Date:  July 27, 2021 

Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action: The 2021/2022 Public Safety 
Dispatch Agreement: B. Lee 

Background: The City of Burnet has contracted with Burnet County for 
Public Safety Dispatch Services/911. 

 
Information: The City of Burnet contracts with Burnet County for dispatch 

services .This Cooperative Agreement between the City of 
Burnet and Burnet County is for dispatch services/911 for the 
Burnet Police and Fire Departments for the Fiscal Year 
2021/2022 Budget. 

  
Fiscal Impact Dispatching Services will be a total cost of $107,422 annually 

paid monthly in eleven increments of $8,951.83 and one 
installment of $$8,951.87 beginning on October 1, 2020.The 
total amount for dispatch services is for both Burnet Police 
and Burnet Fire Departments. 

 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the 2021/2022 Cooperative     

Agreement between the City of Burnet and Burnet County for   
Dispatch Services/911. 

 
 
 



 
 

 
Finance 

 
 

 

ITEM 4.5 
 
 
Patricia Langford 
Director of Finance  
(512)-715-3205 
plangford@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 

Meeting Date:  July 27, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action:  FIRST READING OF AN 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BURNET, TEXAS, AMENDING ORDINANCE 2020-18; THE 
ORIGINAL BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2020, AND ENDING 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 FOR THE CITY OF BURNET, 
TEXAS, FUNDING ACCOUNTS IN BUDGET DUE TO 
UNFORESEEN SITUATIONS; CONTAINING FINDINGS; 
PROVIDING FOR SAVINGS AND SEVERABILITY: P. 
Langford 

 
Background:  
 
Information: This ordinance provides for fiscal year 2020-2021 budget 

amendments as listed on Attachment “A”. Most of the items 
listed were previously approved or presented to Council and 
new items have been noted on the attachment.  

 
  

Fiscal Impact: As noted on Attachment “A”   
 
   
Recommendation:  Approve and adopt Ordinance 2021-26 as presented 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-26 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET, 
TEXAS, AMENDING ORDINANCE 2020-18; THE ORIGINAL BUDGET 
ORDINANCE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2020, 
AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021, FOR THE CITY OF BURNET, 
TEXAS, FUNDING ACCOUNTS IN BUDGET DUE TO UNFORESEEN 
SITUATIONS; CONTAINING FINDINGS; PROVIDING FOR SAVINGS 
AND SEVERABILITY.  

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Burnet, Texas Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget was adopted 
by Ordinance 2020-18 within the time and in the manner required by State Law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Burnet, Texas has reviewed the Budget; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Burnet, Texas has considered the status 
of the Capital Improvement Projects for the rest of the fiscal year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Burnet, Texas hereby finds and 
determines that it is prudent to amend the line items due to unforeseen situations that 
have occurred in the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Burnet, Texas further finds that these 
amendments will serve in the public interest; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Burnet, Texas finds and determines that 
the change in the Budget for the stated municipal purpose is warranted and necessary, 
and that the amendment of the Budget to fund these line items due to unforeseen 
situations and a matter of public necessity warranting action at this time; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BURNET, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1.  Findings 
 

The facts and matters set out above are found to be true and correct. 
 

Section 2.  Purpose 
 

The City of Burnet, Texas, Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget is hereby amended to 
reflect the effect of unforeseen circumstances, as reflected in attachment “A”, 

 
Section 3. Savings/Repealing Clause 
 

All provisions of any ordinance in conflict with this Ordinance are hereby repealed 
to the extent they are in conflict; but such repeal shall not abate any pending 
prosecution for violation of the repealed ordinance, nor shall the repeal prevent a 
prosecution from being commenced for any violation if occurring prior to the repeal 
of the ordinance.  Any remaining portions of said ordinances shall remain in full 
force and effect. 

 



Section 4. Severability  
 

It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that if any of the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of the Ordinance shall be 
declared unconstitutional or invalid by the valid judgment or decree of any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality or invalidity shall not affect any of 
the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, or sections of this 
Ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council without 
the incorporation of this Ordinance of unconstitutional or invalid phrases, clauses, 
sentences, paragraphs, or sections. 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED the First Reading on this the 27th day of July, 2021. 
 
FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 10th day of August, 2021.  

 
 
 

_________________________  
Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________ 
Kelly Dix, City Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



        ATTACHMENT A  
 

 
1. $1,000,000 increase to the Electric fund expenses and a $750,000 increase to the 

Water/Wastewater fund expenses to transfer excess pooled cash reserves to the General 
Fund.  The cost will be covered by fund balance. (New item) 

 
2. $100,000 increase to Golf Course capital improvement expense for clubhouse repairs and 

improvements. The cost will be covered by fund balance. (New item)  
 

3. $120,000 increase in the Water/Wastewater capital improvement expenses for the use of 
Wastewater impact fees to help offset the sewer plant debt service payments. The cost will be 
covered by the funds available in the Wastewater Impact fee account. (New item) 

 
4. $1,145,000 increase in debt service expenses for the early repayment of the debt related to 

the fire station. The cost will be covered by fund balance. (Council approved 7/13/21)    
 

5. $1,050,000 increase to General Fund capital improvement expenses for the purchase of real 
property located at 118 E. Polk (the “Bealls Building”) to serve as the new City Hall and related 
architect fees. (Addressed with Council at the 7/13/21 council meeting) 
 

6. $100,000 increase in Street Department capital improvement expenses for the reconstruction 
of streets. The cost will be covered by fund balance. (Addressed streets in the Woodlands 
subdivision with Council at the 6/22/21 council meeting) 
 

7. $53,229 increase split between the Electric and Water Department capital improvement 
expenses to upgrade the Honeywell-Elster AMI system. The cost will be covered by fund 
balance. (Council approved 5/11/21) 
 

8. $18,500 increase in the Park’s department repair expenses for the replacement of lights at the 
community center with LED lighting.  The cost will be covered by fund balance. (Council 
approved 5/11/21) 
 

 
 



 

 
Administration 

 

 

ITEM 4.6 
 
 
David Vaughn 
City Manager 
512.715.3208 
dvaughn@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 
 

Meeting Date:  July 27, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action: Appointment of Council 

Members to the Comprehensive Plan Committee: D. Vaughn 
 
Background:  
  
Information: Staff recently received submittals to the RFQ for a new 

comprehensive plan.  Staff is requesting the appointment of 
up to three Councilmembers to help review the RFQ’s and 
possibly assist with other issues throughout the planning 
process. 

  
Fiscal Impact: N/A 

 
Recommendation: Staff request the appointment of up to three councilmembers 

to serve with staff on the Comprehensive Plan Committee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	2021-07-27 Regular Meeting Agenda
	CITY OF BURNET
	CRISTA GOBLE BROMLEY, MAYOR


	Item 2.1 21-07-13 RM Minutes
	Item 4.1 Ord Amendment 22 Building Fee
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.2 Certificate of Obligation CTRCO Series 2021
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.2 Certificate of Obligation CTRCO Series 2021-attachment 1
	Item 4.3 Burnet Appraisal District Board Nominations
	Agenda Item Brief
	Background: The terms of all five members of the board of directors of the Burnet Central Appraisal will expire December 2021.  Each voting unit may nominate one candidate, for each of the five positions to be filled, by written resolution on or befor...
	Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor


	Item 4.3 Burnet Appraisal District Board Nominations-attachment 1
	Item 4.4 PD Dispatch Agreement-FY22
	Item 4.4 PD-Dispatch Agreement (002)
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.5 Budget Amendment 7-27-2021
	Agenda Item Brief
	Background:

	Section 1.  Findings
	Section 2.  Purpose
	The City of Burnet, Texas, Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget is hereby amended to reflect the effect of unforeseen circumstances, as reflected in attachment “A”,
	Section 3. Savings/Repealing Clause

	Item 4.6 Comp Plan Committee Appointments
	Agenda Item Brief


